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Vision
To become synonymous with Savings.
Mission
To become a preferred Savings and Investment

Manager in the domestic and regional markets,
while maximizing stakeholder’s value.

Core Values

The Company takes pride in its orientation towards
client service. It believes that its key success
factors include continuous investment in staff,

systems and capacity building and its insistence
on universal best practices at all times.
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Mr. Muhammad Asif Mehdi Rizvi
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Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Ltd.
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’ S.M.C.H.S
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Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326053

Web: www.cdcpakistan.com

MCB Bank Limited
Summit Bank Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

1st Floor, Shaikh Sultan Trust, Building No. 2,
Beaumant Road, Karachi - 75530

Akhund Forbes
D-21, Block-4,Scheme-5
Clifton, karachi

Bawaney & Partners

3rd & 4th Floor, 68 C, Lane 13, Bukhari Commercial Area

Phase VI, D.H.A.,Karachi

MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited
24th Floor, Centrepoint,

Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway

Near K.P.T. Interchange, Karachi.

Asset Manager: “AM2++”(PACRA)
Entity Ratings: “AA-" Long Term (PACRA)
“A1+” Short Term (PACRA)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Eighteenth (18th) Annual General Meeting of MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
will be held on Friday, October 26, 2018 at 11:15 a.m. at Aquarius Hall, Beach Luxury Hotel, Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Road,

Karachi

- Pakistan to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 25, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018
together with Directors' and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To declare and approve final cash dividend of 17.5% i.e. Rs. 1.75 per ordinary share of Rs. 10/- each
for the year ended June 30, 2018, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint external auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The Board
of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed the appointment of M/s KPMG
Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
—
October 01, 2018 Muhammad Asif Mehdi Rizvi
Karachi Company Secretary
Notes:

1. Book Closure Notice
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, October 19, 2018 to Friday, October 26,
2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s. Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, Block B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400, by the close
of business (5:00 p.m.) on Thursday, October 18, 2018, will be considered in time for the determination of the entitlement
of the shareholders to final cash dividend and to attend and vote at the meeting.

2. Appointment of Proxy and Participation in the AGM
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another person as
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote for his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy shall
also have the right to demand and join in demanding a poll and vote on a poll.

The instrument appointing proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed, as the
case may be, or a notarially certified copy of the power or authority, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution
/ power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company. Form of Proxy is enclosed in English and Urdu language.

Beneficial owners of the physical shares and the shares deposited with the Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Ltd. (CDC) and / or their proxies are required to produce their original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
or Passport for identification purpose at the time of attending the meeting.

3. Notice of Submission of Valid CNIC Copies (Mandatory)

SECP vide SRO No. 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 directed the companies to issue dividend warrant only crossed
as "Al/c Payee only" which should bear the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) of the registered member or
authorized person. Moreover, the availability of valid CNIC of all members is also necessary for filing, with SECP, the
list of members along with Annual Return of the Company.

Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC along with folio number are requested
to send the same, at the earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar. In case of non-availability of valid copy
of CNIC of any member, in the Company's records, the Company will be constrained to withhold the Dividend Warrants
of such members, which will be released only upon providing the copy.
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4. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory)
Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), every listed company is required to pay dividend, if any, to their
members compulsorily through electronic mode by directly crediting the same in their bank account provided by them.
The company shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who do not provide their bank details. Members
are required to provide to the Company's Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio number, bank account
number, title of account, complete mailing address of the bank. CDC account holders should submit their request
directly to their broker (participant)/CDC. A Dividend Mandate Form is available at the Registered Office of the Company
and the same are also placed on the Company's website.

5. Deduction of Withholding Tax on the Amount of Dividend under Section 150 the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
(Mandatory)
(i) Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act 2018 effective July 1, 2018, the rates of deduction of income tax from
dividend payments under the Income Tax Ordinance have been revised as follows:
a) Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax return 15%; and
b) Rate of tax deduction for non-filers of income tax return 20%

The tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% shall be made for the payment of dividend to shareholders
whose names are entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, before close of business
hour (5:00 p.m.) on Friday, October 19, 2018 otherwise tax on the cash dividend will be deducted @ 20.00% instead
of 15%. List of Filers is available at Federal Board of Revenue's (FBR) website: http://www.fbr.gov.pk.

(i) Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), with-holding tax will be determined
separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder (s) based on their shareholding
proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of Principal
shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholders Joint Holder (s)
Folio/CDC Total
Alc No. number of Name and Shareholding Name and Shareholding
shares CNIC No. Proportiion (No. CNIC No. Proportiion (No.
of Shares) of Shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business (5:00 p.m) on Thursday, October
18, 2018; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

(ii) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated
with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate
to the company or Share Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be,
must quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the company and/or the Share Registrar at the following
phone Numbers, email addresses:
Company: MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Ltd.

UAN: 11-11-622-24 email: info@mcbah.com

Share Registrar: Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd.
Tel #: 0800-23275 email: info@cdcpak.com

6. Change in Members Addresses
Members' are requested to immediately notify any change in their address to the Share Registrar M/s. Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited in order that the dividend warrants may be dispatched to their correct addresses.

7. Unclaimed Dividend
Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar
CDC House, Block 'B', SMCHS., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74000 to collect / enquire about their unclaimed
dividend, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated
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procedure, all such dividend outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be
deposited to the Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend.

8. Placement of Audited Financial Statements on the Website
The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 and reports have been placed on the Company's website:
www. mcbah.com.

9. Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of AGM through emails
In terms of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is allowed to send financial statements and
reports to its members electronically. Moreover, pursuant to S.R.O. 787(1)/2014 dated 8th September 2014, issued by
SECP, companies were permitted to circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual General
Meeting to its members through e-mail who opt for purpose.

Shareholders who wish to receive annual reports and notice of the General Meeting through e-mail are requested to
provide, through a consent form duly signed by them, their particulars, i.e. Name, Folio / CDC A/C No., Email Address,
Contact Number, CNIC Number. A Standard Consent Form is available at the Company's website: www.mcbah.com.
Shareholders are also requested to notify immediately any change in their e-mail address to the Share Registrar of
the Company, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Share Registrar Department, CDC House 99-B, Block
'B' S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi-74400.

10. Video-link Facility
If the members holding ten percent of the total paid up capital or such other percentage of the paid up capital as may
be specified by the Commission, are resident in any other city, the company shall provide the facility of video-link to
such members for attending annual general meeting of the company, if so required by such members in writing to the
company at least seven days (7) before the date of the meeting.

Consent for Video-link Facility

I/We, of being a member of MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments

Limited holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio/CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account/Investor Account No.

hereby opt for participation in the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 26, 2018
or any adjourned meeting through video-link facility at (Please insert name of the City)

Signature of member
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Shareholders

It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2018. | would like to start by offering you my
sincerest thanks for trusting MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited as a vehicle for your investment. Your
continued trust in us helps us create greater benefits for the Country and the Industry our business operates in.

The Audited Financial Statements for the year reveals following about the operational performance of the Company, when
compared with last year:

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

-------------------- Amount in Rupees------------------—-
Management Fee / Investment Advisory Fee 701,640,243 663,730,210
Revenue 703,020,666 793,504,445
Profit after taxation 124,192,903 202,194,317
Earnings per share (EPS) 1.72 2.81

The Board's report has delved on the details of the economy and | shall therefore refrain from repeating that information
but focus on the broader issues.

Our asset management company operates in the domestic market, which in turn is impacted by international, as well as
domestic issues. While most of the developed world has been on a quantative-easing-based recovery path since the financial
crisis driven downturn of a decade ago, there remain fears of the growth being negatively impacted, not only with the
reversal of the easing, but owing to the inward looking trade policies being adopted by the developed countries, as well
as the global political relations that can be detrimental the supply of oil and have a consequential impact on energy prices.
This in turn, enhances the vulnerability of the economies of the emerging markets, in particular those that are energy
deficient like Pakistan.

Pakistan has achieved a growth rate of 5.8%, a ten-year high; however, it has been based on a high level of import
dependence, both in terms of importing manufactured goods, as well as its energy needs. This has left the country with
precariously low foreign currency reserves, particularly when exports were severely impacted through a variety of policy
measures. This factor has significantly increased our vulnerability.

Even without the challenges that are currently being faced by the economy, a perennial issue that the asset management
faces, is the extremely low savings rate coupled with a very large size of an undocumented economy, which results in a
very significant amount of the savings being parked in grossly under-documented real-estate transactions. Pakistan's savings
rate has averaged around 12% of GDP, whereas the average of the rest of the Subcontinent is twice that.

During the year your company launched, the first of its kind in Pakistan, an online savings solution, iSave, which allows
the investor to open his/ her account online and start savings journey within minutes. In this age of constant change, the
launch of iSave coupled with use of other innovations and technologies, we feel there is a great hope and optimism for
what MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited can achieve in this area. The scope and scale of technology are
unprecedented and with our size and understanding of the Mutual Funds Industry, we feel we are ideally placed to capture
the highest value opportunities as we respond with agility and reinvention. Our talent plans, our strategic roadmap, our
digital initiatives and our move into new lines of businesses are all geared to ensure sustainable profitable growth for the
long term while addressing the complexities and ambiguities of the current economic cycle.

The overall governance of the Company, through the Board's oversight of the Management during the year, has continued
to take steps on various structural initiatives for a sustainable performance in the future. The Board's focus has remained
on key areas towards achieving highlevels of performance, including an emphasis on technology to ensure high standards
of service delivery and increase the Company's market penetration. During the year, the Board and its various Committees
remained active and met frequently to provide strategic direction to the management on the overall corporate and retail
business strategy of the Company apart from meeting for various regulatory approvals. The composition of the Board reflects
mix of varied backgrounds and rich experience in the fields of business, finance, banking and regulations. The Audit
Committee continues to ensure that the governance structure is fully compliant whilst they monitor the high standards of
ethics, control procedures and risks associated with the business as identified by the Board. The Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee recommend and evaluate management performance against key performance indicators and
objectives agreed by the Board. During the year, a total of 23 meetings were held which comprised of nine (9) meetings
of the Board of Directors, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee and 5 meetings of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee. After the close of the financial year, to carry out review of the effectiveness of the risk management procedures,
the Risk Management Committee of the Board has been formed. | wish to record my appreciation of the Board Members
for the active participation and continuing guidance provided to the Management.
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The Management under the guidance of the Board has been able to revamp various processes leading to improvement
in service quality, upgrading of technology, enhancing distribution platforms, strengthening the fund management and
improving the governance structure. | expect that the Company, through its Management team, will continue to work closely
with its valued unit holders whose savings it manages as well as with its employees', shareholders and stakeholders in a
manner that makes them feel proud to be associated with MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited.It is with their
continued hard work that the Company has been able to and will continue to meet the expectations of all its stakeholders
and deliver the results expected of it.

Finally, on behalf of the Board and myself personally, | would wish to place on record my appreciation for the support
received by the Company from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and other Regulatory Authorities
including the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan, the unit holders who entrusted us with their savings and our shareholders
for their continued support and confidence.

amela

Mian Mohammad Mansha
Chairman - Board of Directors
MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (MCBAH) are pleased to present report on the
affairs of MCBAH for the year ended June 30, 2018.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a non-banking finance company, licensed as a Pension Fund Manager as well as an Asset Management
Company and an Investment Advisor under the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's regulatory regime.

THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
Economy & Money Market Review

Financial Year 2018 (FY18) has been a rollercoaster ride of contradicting economic indicators with benign inflation and healthy
Large Scale Manufacturing Index (LSM) growth positively contributed to the economy, while mounting fiscal pressure, falling
Foreign Exchange (FX) reserves, and political turmoil created a negative impact on the economy. Upward trending global
commodity prices, especially rising crude oil prices, further added to the woes of the local economy.

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth is expected to set at a record 10 years high of around 5.7% supported by a robust
industrial and services sector growth. The marked end of power crises along with easing monetary cycle has led to an expansion
in Large Scale Manufacturing Index (LSM) growth which is expected to post a growth of around 7% for Financial Year 2018
(FY18). Inflation as measured by Consumer Price Index (CPI) has averaged around 4.0% owing to adequate supply of commaodities
and a stable currency during the most part of the year. However, for Financial Year 2019 (FY19), we expect Consumer Price
Index (CPI) to jack up to average of around 7.5% owing to rising commodity prices along with weakness in currency. Furthermore,
the weaker currency is also expected to shoot up the core inflation above 8.0%.

External sector has been the Achilles heel as a record high current account deficit along with financial flows by both bilateral
and multilateral institutions have caused a scarcity of dollars. Current account deficit soared to United States Dollar (USD) 18
billion, nearly 5.8% of the GDP raising alarm bells for the economy. As a result of which, Foreign Exchange (FX) reserves of
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) have depleted by United States Dollar (USD) 6.5 billion during Financial Year 2018 (FY18) to USD
9.7 billion, providing a mere import coverage of around 2.0 times. By large, Pakistan could be heading towards another
International Monetary Fund (IMF) program during the second quarter of next fiscal year unless significant flows are generated
via the amnesty scheme.

During Financial Year 2018 (FY18), State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) increased Policy Rate by a cumulative 75 basis points (bps)
mainly due to ballooning twin deficits, declining real interest rates and rapid increase in imports. In anticipation of an interest
rate hike, bond yield curve showed an upward trajectory particularly during the second half of Financial Year 2018 (FY18). Pace
of widening trade deficit remained alarmingly high which kept on diluting Forex reserves, keeping investors away from longer
tenure securities. To extend maturity profile, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) introduced Floater rate 10 year bond with a base
rate of 6-month Market Treasury Bills (MTB) weighted average yield. Healthy participation of PKR 174 billion was witnessed in
the very first auction of 10 year Floater bond out of which a total of PKR 20 billion was accepted at a rate of benchmark + 50
basis points (bps). Liquidity remained comfortable throughout Financial Year 2018 (FY18) owing to regular Open Market
Operations (OMOs) conducted by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Scarcity of Shariah Compliant avenues continued in period
under review as there was no fresh issuance of ljara SUKUK despite ample liquidity in the market.

Equities Market Review

Equities turned red after a span of nearly 9 years, as the benchmark index lost around 10% during the year. Both economic
and political factors continued to haunt the investors; with the dominant theme prevailing around the external account crisis.
Foreigners' in view of weak currency, kept offloading local equities, selling USD 288 million of stocks which was mainly absorbed
by Insurance companies (around USD 204 Million) and Companies (around USD 100 Million). Trading volumes during the year
averaged around 174 million shares/ USD 8.15 billion depicting a massive decline of around 49%/47% Year-over-Year (YoY)
respectively.

Cyclical had the worst year as emerging concerns on the economic growth kept the investors at bay. Cement and Autos were
major laggards as they lost around 42% and 30% respectively. Cements declined due to increasing coal prices and imminent
supply additions in the sector. While, Autos lost mainly due to a weak local currency along with negative sentiments emanating
post budget due to government's announcement of barring non-filers from purchasing vehicles. Power sector shrank by around
20% due to rising circular debt resulting in non-payment of dividends by some companies and shut-down of some Furnace Oil
(FO) plants post government orders. Oil Exploration and Production Companies (E&Ps) and Fertilizers were the only major
sectors providing positive return, gaining 20% and 3% respectively. Against the market movement, Oil Exploration and Production
Companies (E&Ps) posted a considerable gain of around 20% Year-over-Year (YoY) due to surge in average oil prices by 29%.
Fertilizer rallied due to improved sector dynamics in the form of comfortable inventory levels and enhanced pricing power of
the manufacturers being reflected in increased fertilizer prices post-budget.
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MARKET & ECONOMY - FUTURE OUTLOOK

For the next year, the economic growth is expected to slightly slow down as a weak currency and tighter monetary policy will
rein on the consumption patterns. However, increased power supply along with the documentation of economy will provide a
respite to the economic managers during this critical juncture. We share the optimism on better governance & long term prospects
for economic revival amid more focused and sincere efforts to address chronic issues on economic front by the new government;
however, the path is likely to be tough and with a number of potentially un-popular policy steps. Given initial plans of Pakistan
Tehreek-e-Insaf (PTI), the ruling party, some sense of policy steps can be expected but given the precarious economic conditions,
we think immediate term measures to address twin deficits are critical.

Fiscal side is also expected to weaken as spending by the government will cause fiscal deficit to cross above 6.0% of Gross
Domestic Product (GDP). Given pressures on the external front along with rising inflation, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) is
expected to further tighten the monetary policy, with 100 basis points (bps) already increased, which shall result in higher debt
servicing cost for the government during the next fiscal year. Along with entry to the International Monetary Fund (IMF) program,
which will aim to curtail the fiscal deficit, developmental expenditures will be sharply cut during the next year.

On the equity side, we shall closely monitor the environment to incorporate the new policy guidance as it becomes available.
In broader terms, we believe, the last two years market performance (down approx. 20% from peak levels) has reflected the
concerns on political and economic direction and also reflected in performance of cyclical stocks where correction in stock prices
is even sharper. We continue to reiterate our stance that current levels offer little downside potential which puts in a lot of comfort
for long term investors. We believe upside in stocks shall unveil only gradually as confidence reigns back and economic policies
shape the outlook in the expected manner. Therefore, going forward, stocks offer long term investment opportunity with rewards
for patient investors. We continue to track trends in the economic indicators of the country and adjust our portfolio accordingly.
Our Top-Down analysis favors sectors that benefit from currency depreciation and higher interest rates; however, we cannot
ignore the individual company dynamics along with their prices that can play an important role in security selection.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

The Net Assets of the open end mutual fund industry stood at around PKR 549 billion at the end of Financial Year 2018 (FY18).
Monetary tightening by the government resulted in an increase in interest rates, bringing flows to the money market funds. Size
of Money Market (Islamic/Conventional) and Capital Protected funds increased, while assets under management of all other
categories decreased in Financial Year 2018 (FY18). Conventional Money market funds garnered a huge inflow of PKR 52
billion, increasing from PKR 70 billion to PKR 122 billion, whereas Shariah Compliant Money Market Funds grew by PKR 1.6
billion to PKR 9.0 billion.

In terms of the segment share, Equity and Equity related funds continued to be the leaders with a share of around 58%, followed
by Money Market funds with a share of 24% and Income funds having a share of 18% as at the end of Financial Year 2018
(FY18).

The Net Assets of Pension Funds stood at around PKR 26 billion at the end of Financial Year 2018 (FY18). The size of both
Conventional and Shariah-Compliant funds increased by 2.5% and 4.3% respectively. Amongst sub-categories, size of Debt
and Money Market funds increased while those of equity funds decreased.

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

In the wake of expected increase in interest rates, fixed income fund should garner attention over the short to medium term.
The recent amnesty scheme can also provide increased inflows, as the scarcity of alternate investment avenues will increase
the relative attractiveness of the mutual funds. Interest in equity space would be contingent on how the government tackles the
external crisis, bringing the confidence back into the markets. Nevertheless, these attractive levels do offer an opportunity to
build equity portfolios with a longer term investment horizon.

Digitization has touched upon various aspects of our lives. It all started with digitizing our social networks, purchase of goods
online, transactions on the internet, lifestyle enhancements and now our finances too.

Our unique Direct-to-Consumer (D2C) distribution through "iSave"” is changing the rules of engagement in the asset management
industry. A few years back, an investor residing in a small town could not have imagined having access to wealth advisory. He
would typically have had his money in a savings bank account or fixed deposit. Digitization has changed this scenario for us.
We are now investing and utilizing our digital strengths through smart targeting and creating new processes to tap this customer
segment which was earlier under the radar and difficult to reach. By utilizing mobile, social media, big data, analytics and FinTech,
the process are becoming paperless, efficient, and easy and allows real-time access to manage your funds.

Technology has enabled wider geographical reach, providing relevant and unbiased advisory and customer satisfaction, all at
the same time. With such marketing efforts we have started spreading financial awareness to the remotest parts of the country
and bridging geographical difference. We believe increased investment in our business, distribution and technology shall augur
well with more visible impact on profitability gradually from next couple of years.
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COMPANY's PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Company recorded a gross income of Rs. 703 million, which includes management/investment advisory fee and other
operating income. After accounting for administrative, operating & financial expenses and income sharing of Rs. 546 million,
the company earned a profit before tax of Rs. 197 million. The net profit after tax for the period amounts to Rs. 124 million, as
compared to net profit of Rs. 202 million for the corresponding period ended June 30, 2017. We expect the assets under
management to strengthen further going forward contributing to the revenue growth and profitability.

The earnings per share of current financial year ended June 30, 3018 is Rs. 1.72 as compared to Rs. 2.81 per share in the
previous financial year ended June 30, 2017.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 17.5 per cent (Rs. 1.75 per share) as compared to 32.5 per cent (Rs. 3.25 per share)
for the year ended June 30, 2017.

The company remains focused towards its growth strategy to penetrate the potential markets. The company has invested
significantly in skilled work force to enable itself to capture the growing market size and enhance awareness about mutual fund
investments which remains low. We are actively focusing on digital platforms to educate the public with investable surpluses
about mutual funds and reach target audiences not reachable through physical platforms. These focused investments primarily
in human resource require cash outlays in initial years which, in accordance with accounting standards, are expensed out,
hurting profitability of the company. However, the results of these investments would be reflected in future years. The early
results of our investments in people and digital platforms are encouraging reflected by the company achieving highest core
revenues of last five years. During the current year we witnessed 8% increase in revenue from core activity reaching at Rs.723
million. We remain confident current investments would bear fruits in future leading to better dividends in coming years.

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility to ensure that internal financial controls system of the
company is adequate and is operating effectively.

The value of investment of employees in pension funds is Rs. 27,222,357 as per the audited financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2018 (Rs. 24,787,595 for the year ended June 30, 2017).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Asset under management (AUM) which is the life blood of asset management industry has shown mediocre growth in the past.
This relates to poor savings trend in the society (which is around 13.4% at the moment) on one hand and averseness of general
public from documentation on the other. Corporate being a financially educated sector is more inclined towards mutual fund
investments as compared to general public. To attract new clients in this highly competitive industry Asset Management Companies
(AMCs) are coming up with online solutions and developing bank like products. All these things have substantial costs to develop
and maintain while the demand for delivery of superior returns is not allowing increment in management fee. Thus, this continues
to put pressure on margins of Asset Management Companies (AMCs). To cover up expenses and being profitable the only
remedy is high volume of investments. To make up for the slow growth in the industry Asset Management Companies (AMCs)
are striving hard on tapping discretionary portfolio management accounts.

Government has been coming up with more and more stringent regulations for the industry especially on Know Your Customer
(KYC) requirements to cope up Anti Money Laundering (AML) and Combating the Financing of Terrorism (CFT). This puts high
responsibility of Asset Management Companies (AMCs) to carefully perform Customer Due Diligence (CDD) as breach of these
regulations might attract heavy penalties. This increases regulatory risk for Asset Management Companies (AMCs). We are
committed to ensuring compliance of these very demanding but necessary regulations.

Pakistan has been facing political turmoil, corruption and terrorism for quite some time which have taken heavy toll on the
economic growth of country. The economic instability on the back of these factors and ad hoc policies have made the environment
murky, which is reflected in burgeoning current account deficit, declining reserves and currency devaluation. This bleak economic
environment which deter both foreign and local investors for accepting high risk and persuade them to take shelter in safe
heavens could also hamper growth of asset management business.

There have not occurred any significant changes during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the Company
or any other Company in which the Company has interest.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT
During the year under review, there were no major Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities undertaken by the Company.

However, the Company believes that its business has no adverse impact on the environment and with the increased use of
technology; the Company shall reduce the use of paper.
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ENTITY RATING AND ASSET MANAGER RATING

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of "AA-", to the Company. The
Ratings of the Collective Investment Schemes under management of the Company are as under:

As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017
----------------- Performance ranking---------=-------

Fund Rating
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term agency
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star 3 - star PACRA
Pakistan Capital Market Fund 5 - star 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 3 - star 4 - star - 4 - star PACRA
MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund - 4 - star - 2 - star PACRA
MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 3 - star 3 - star 4 - star 3 - star PACRA

As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017

Stability rating---------=----------

Rating
agency
Pakistan Cash Management Fund AA + (f) AAA (f) PACRA
Pakistan Income Fund A+ (f) A+ (f) PACRA
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund AA- (f) AA- (f) PACRA
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund A+ (f) A+ (f) PACRA
MCB DCF Income Fund A+ (f) A+ PACRA
MCB Cash Management Optimizer AA + (f) AA (f) PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund AA - () AA - (f) PACRA

HOLDING COMPANY

MCB Bank Limited, being the parent company of MCB-Arif Savings and Investments Limited, holds 51.33% of the outstanding

ordinary shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year ended June 30, 2018, eight (8) members (Male: 8 and Female: 0) remained on the Board of Directors

of the Company, the details of which are as under:

Sr. No. Name Status Membership in other Board
Committees
1. Mian Muhammad Mansha Non-Executive Director None
2. Mr. Nasim Beg Non-Executive Director Audit, Risk Management and
HR&R* Committees
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Non-Executive Director Audit, Risk Management and
HR&R* Committees
4. Mr. Samad A. Habib Non-Executive Director None
5. Dr. Syed Salman Shah Independent Director Chairman - HR&R* Committee
6. Mr. Haroun Rashid Independent Director Chairman - Audit Committee and
member HR&R* Committee
7. Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Independent Director Chairman - Risk Management
Committee and member Audit
Committee
8. Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem Chief Executive Officer HR&R* Committee
* HR&R Stands for Human Resource and Remuneration

The Company is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. With seven (7) non-executive directors
including three (3) independent Directors on the Board, as governing body of the Company, the Board is accountable to the
shareholders for good corporate governance. Management is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out
in the code of corporate governance particularly with regard to independence of non-executive directors. The Company remains
committed to conduct business in line with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and
responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.
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The following specific statements are being given to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

a. Financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results of
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements and any departures there from have been adequately disclosed and explained;

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored with ongoing
efforts to improve it further;

f. There are no doubts what so ever upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern;

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations;

h. Key operating and financial data of the last 6 years in summarized form is annexed,;

i. Outstanding taxes, duties, levies and charges have been fully disclosed in the annexed audited financial statements
for details please refer note 18.1, 18.2 & 19;

j-  The management of the Company is continuously making efforts to ensure that an effective and efficient internal financial
controls system remains active and implemented through consistent and continuous monitoring. Internal Audit Department
of the Company is performing audit and review activities to evaluate the implementation of financial controls and ensure
the existence of an effective control environment throughout the Company. During the year, significant and material
findings of Internal Auditors, External Auditors and Regulators were addressed on a priority basis by the management
and the status was regularly reported to the Board Audit Committee (BAC). Based upon the results achieved from
reviews and audits conducted during the year, the Board of Directors considers that the existing internal financial control
system is adequate and has been effectively implemented and monitored, though room for improvement always exists;

k. All the directors have completed the Directors Training Programme course or are exempt from attending training course
due to sufficient working experience;

I.  The Directors' Remuneration Policy (The Policy) was approved by the Board of Directors in their 144th meeting held
on September 14, 2018. The main features of the Policy are as under:

(i) With effect from September 14, 2018 each non-executive director will be paid a sum of rupees seventy five
thousand (75,000) for attending the Board meeting / committees of the Board;

(i) For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Directors were paid a sum of rupees fifty thousand (50,000) for attending
the Board meeting / committees of the Board;

(iii) The Vice Chairman of the Board is entitled to certain perks and perquisites on account of the additional
responsibilities, which have been disclosed in the annexed audited financial statements, for details please
refer note 32;

(iv) Payment for any extra services shall not be made to any executive director. However, if a non-executive
director perform any special services, the remuneration of the same will be pre-decided by the Board and in
the absence of the quorum, by the general meeting of members of the Company;

(v) Remuneration to executive director(s) shall be decided by the Board on recommendation of the Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee based on the role and responsibilities of the executive director and
shall reflect the individual's roles, experience and responsibilities; and

(vi) Non-executive directors are not covered under any post retirement scheme of the Company.

m. The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2018 is annexed,;

n. A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board's own performance, members
of the Board and Committees of the Board;
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o. During the year, management rights of an in-house built software were sold to one of the related parties, Adamjee
Insurance Company Limited. There are no other contracts or arrangements entered into with any of the related parties

r.

requiring disclosure under section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017;

p. Meeting of the Directors.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The attendance of each Director is as follows:

g. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted

1.  Mian Muhammad Mansha 9 9 4 5

2. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 9 -

3. Dr. Syed Salman Shah 9 9 7 2

4. Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 9 6 3

5. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 9 -

6. Mr. Samad A. Habib 9 9 5 4

7. Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 7 2

8. Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem (CEO) 9 9 9 -

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 9 6 3
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 9 -
3. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 7 2
4. Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 7 2

Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five (5) meetings of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance of

each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Dr. Syed Salman Shah 5 5 5 -
2. Mr. Nasim Beg 5 5 5 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 5 5 5 -
4. Mr. Haroun Rashid 5 5 3 2
5.  Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem (CEO) 5 5 5 -
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s. In the meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Risk Committee of the Board was formed consisting of the following

members:
(i) Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg - Chairman of the Committee;
(i) Mr. Nasim Beg;
(iii) Mr. Ahmed Jahangir.
AUDITORS

The present auditors, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed their engagement for the year ended
June 30, 2018 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 18th Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee considered and recommended the re-appointment of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants
as statutory auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2019 and the Board of Directors also endorsed the
recommendation of the Audit Committee to comply with the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Management Company is thankful to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the
management of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their continued support and cooperation. The Directors also appreciate

the efforts put in by the employees of the Company for their commitment and dedication and shareholders for their confidence
in the Company.

For and on Behalf of Board

Muhammad Saqib Saleem Nasim Beg

Chief Executive Officer . . .
September 14, 2018 Director and Vice Chairman
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
HAROUN RASHID 1 500 0.00
NASIM BEG 3 26,322 0.04
AHMED JAHANGIR 1 500 0.00
ABDUS SAMAD 2 504 0.00
MIAN MOHAMMAD MANSHA 1 500 0.00
SYED SALMAN ALI SHAH 1 500 0.00
MR. MUHAMMAD SAQIB SALEEM 1 500 0.00
MIRZA QAMAR BEG 1 500 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED 1 21,664,167 30.09
ADAMJEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 1 5,462,000 7.59
MCB BANK LIMITED - TREASURY 1 36,956,768 51.33
Executives - - -
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 70 0.00
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 1 11,470 0.02
Mutual Funds
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 1 900,000 1.25
General Public
a. Local 905 3,396,136 4.72
b. Foreign 1 4 0.00
Foreign Companies 1 2,961,000 4.1
Others 11 618,559 0.86
Totals 935 72,000,000 100.00
Share holders holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage
MCB BANK LIMITED - TREASURY 36,956,768 51.33
ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED 21,664,167 30.09
ADAMJEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 5,462,000 7.59
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

No. Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

292 1 to 100 4,381
128 101 to 500 43,581
213 501 to 1000 143,130
192 1001 to 5000 420,830
45 5001 to 10000 347,035
19 10001 to 15000 245,590
14 15001 to 20000 268,500
5 20001 to 25000 111,938
3 25001 to 30000 87,500
3 30001 to 35000 101,000
2 35001 to 40000 72,500
1 45001 to 50000 50,000
1 50001 to 55000 52,900
3 55001 to 60000 176,800
1 75001 to 80000 77,880
1 90001 to 95000 92,000
1 150001 to 155000 154,000
1 160001 to 165000 165,000
1 180001 to 185000 183,500
1 210001 to 215000 211,500
1 220001 to 225000 224,000
1 325001 to 330000 327,000
1 495001 to 500000 495,500
1 895001 to 900000 900,000
1 2960001 to 2965000 2,961,000
1 5460001 to 5465000 5,462,000
1 21660001 to 21665000 21,664,167
1 36955001 to 36960000 36,956,768
935 72,000,000
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STATEMENT OF COMLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

10.

1.

12

The total number of directors is eight as per the following:
(a) Male: 8
(b) Female: 0

The composition of board is as follows:
(a) Independent Directors: 3
(b) Other Non-executive Director: 4
(c) Executive Directors (CEO): 1

Since the limit on directorship in more than five listed companies is effective from January 1, 2019 (i.e. one year from the
effective date of Code of Corporate Governance, 2017), the directors, in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance,
2012 have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this company
(excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company.
A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has
been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board
for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

The board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

All the Directors of the Company have already completed the Directors' Training program in previous years or are exempted
from the requirement.

The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEO have duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

(a) Audit Committee

Name of Director Status
Mr. Haroun Rashid Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Member

(b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Name of Director Status
Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah Chairman
Mr. Haroun Rashid Member
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member

Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem (CEO) Member
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STATEMENT OF COMLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

(c) Risk Management Committee

Name of Director Status
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to the Committee
for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees was as per following:

(a) Audit Committee: Quarterly meetings of the Audit Committee were held, the details of which are as under:

Sr. No Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 1st meeting of the Committee for the year August 2, 2017
2. 2nd meeting of the Committee for the year August 3, 2017
3. 3rd meeting of the Committee for the year October 18, 2017
4. 4th meeting of the Committee for the year October 19, 2017
5. 5th meeting of the Committee for the year January 31, 2018
6. 6th meeting of the Committee for the year February 1, 2018
7. 7th meeting of the Committee for the year February 23, 2018
8. 8th meeting of the Committee for the year April 17,2018
9. 9th meeting of the Committee for the year April 18, 2018

(b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: The HR&R Committee met on various occasions the details of
which are as under:

Sr. No Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 10th meeting of the Committee August 4, 2017
2. 11th meeting of the Committee September 7, 2017
3. 12th meeting of the Committee October 12, 2017
4, 13th meeting of the Committee February 2, 2018
5. 14th meeting of the Committee February 23, 2018

(c) Risk Management Committee: Since the Risk Management Committee was formed after the close of the financial
year, no meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held during the year.

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted
by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

[vamels -

MIAN MUHAMMAD MANSHA
Chairman - Board of Directors
MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH

kPME

THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

To the members of MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

Review Report on Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) prepared by the
Board of Directors of MCB — Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (“the
Company") for the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with
the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the
Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

KPMG Taseer Had & Co.. a Parinership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG network of
Independent membar fems afliiated with KPMG Inlermnaticnal Cooperatve ("KPMG International™), a Swiss entity.
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 14 September 2018

Karachi
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights for the last 6 years

Pre tax Margin
Net Margin

Performance

Return on assets
Return on equity
Leverage

Gearing (T-Debt:Equity)

Interest Coverage Ratio

Liquidity
Current Ratio

Valuation
Earnings per share

No. of ordinary shares

Historical trend

%
%

%
%

times
times

times

Rs.

Management fee (Rs. in million)
Operating profit [PBIT] (Rs. in million)

Profit before tax (Rs. in million)
Profit after tax (Rs. in million)
Share capital (Rs. in million)

Shareholders equity (Rs. in million)

Total assets (Rs. in million)

2013
41%
29%

1%
12%

0.11
N/A

7.33

2.19

72

469.98
220.16
220.16
157.65
720.00
1273.03
1411.54

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

1
1

37

2014
41%
31%

1%
12%

0.19
N/A

4.17

2.54

72

510.67
239.35
239.11
182.64
720.00
353.85
607.73

2015
51%
36%

14%
19%

0.34
65.03

2.63

3.87

72

640.09
398.77
392.64
278.86
720.00
1505.04
2019.33

2016
46%
31%

1%
15%

0.40
770.06

2.38

3.32

72

703.55
350.27
349.81
239.11
720.00
1549.23
2173.87

2017
36%
25%

9%
13%

0.43
474.94

2.08

2.81

72

663.73
286.56
285.96
202.19
720.00
1579.54
2263.77

2018
28%
18%

6%
8%

0.43
479.53

2.09

1.72

72

701.64
196.98
196.57
124.19
720.00
1570.97
2248.73
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MCB Arif Habib Savings and
Investments Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash
flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30
June 2018 and of the profit and comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a

KPMG + Hods & Co., o Partnarship 0
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
1 Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and management rights
Refer note 3.1.3 and 5.2 to the financial Our audit procedures to test the potential
statements for accounting policies and impairment of goodwill and management
details of goodwill and management rights included the following:
lgnts * Assessing management's identification
Goodwill and management rights of Cash Generating Unit and the
amounting to Rs. 82.1 million and Rs. 192 allocation of goodwill with respect to
million respectively were recognized by our understanding of the Company’s
the Company in 2011 as a result of business;
;n?r:;e:hscl;eme.l als fultly d|sclos$§ innote | | Involved our internal valuation specialist
C. 9% manclrla tstaler:;ents, ,e to assist in evaluating the
Tmpan:gg{::a TI es; te c_":lw'n: _ appropriateness of assumptions applied
?di?‘i'? f “:": a"{ ]r"‘a”g'_ 65 :""ng to key inputs such as management
IRECHAHS uholts Ives:ton impalrment, remuneration, operating costs, discount
We identified impairment of goodwill and rate and terminal growth rate, which
management rights as a key audit matter included comparing these inputs with
because of its significance to the financial externally derived data as well as our
statements, involvement of significant knowledge of the client and the
degree of judgment and estimation, industry; and
ﬁamcult;rly; forectast;ng mlf": _CaSh s Evaluated the adequacy of the financial
olws;. . € lhscoun rate alpp |ef fm statement disclosures, including
< C:::tmg ¢ edp;esent va UZO ut.urT disclosures of key assumptions,
“ann Tows A l, g judgments and sensitivities.
growth rate applied to the cash flows, all
of which can be inherently uncertain.
2 Valuation of Investments
Refer note 3.2, 6 and 12 to the financial Our audit procedures in respect of valuation
statements for accounting policies and of investments including impairment
details of investments. allowance included the following:
As at 30 June 2018, the Company has « obtaining an understanding of and
investments classified as " Available-for- testing the design and operating
sale” amounting to Rs. 714.9 million effectiveness of the key controls for the
representing approximately 32 % of total valuation of investments including
assets of the Company. impairment allowance against
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S. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
We identified the valuation of investment classified as available for
investments including determination of sale;

impairment allowance on investments
classified as 'Available-for-sale’ as key
audit matter because of its significance in
relation to the total asset of the Company
and judgment involved in assessing
impairment allowance.

* assessing, on a sample basis, whether
investments were valued at fair value
based on the last quoted market price
and rates quoted by Mutual Fund
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP); and

* assessing the basis used by the
management to determine impairment
against available-for-sale investments.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report for 2018, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
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report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Cempany as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and
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d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980), was deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mazhar Saleem.

Y/

Date: 14 September 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Long-term investments

Long-term loans and prepayments
Long-term deposits

Current assets

Receivable from related parties

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Accrued mark-up

Short-term investments

Advance tax - net of provisions

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
72,000,000 (2017: 72,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Reserves
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability - net

Current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend
Trade and other payables
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

S O

10
11
12
13
14

15

17

18

19

2018 2017
(Rupees)
400,730,566 375,063,339
520,628,175 547,193,018

30,230,650 26,918,837

3,089,228 4,594,738
954,678,619 953,769,932
511,110,119 484,368,200
7,072,270 7,480,791
75,108,196 62,357,896
200,207 72,809
618,571,508 669,301,170
62,495,927 67,730,351
19,491,053 18,692,497

1,294,049,280

1,310,003,714

2,248,727,899

2,263,773,646

720,000,000 720,000,000
720,000,000 720,000,000
847,536,132 859,537,437

1,567,536,132

1,579,537,437

54,837,186 49,012,986
4,203,632 4,275,656
622,150,949 630,947,567
681,191,767 684,236,209

2,248,727,899

2,263,773,646
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenue

Management fee / investment advisory fee
Processing and other related income

Profit on bank deposits

Income from government securities

Dividend income

Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net

Impairment loss on available for sale investments

Unrealized appreciation on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss' - net

Expenses

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Financial charges
Workers' welfare fund

Other income

Profit for the year before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

20

21

22

12.1

23
24
25
26

27

28

29

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
(Rupees)
701,640,243 663,730,210
21,471,680 7,294,285
1,441,811 1,141,924
- 5,825,173
869,942 25,574,849
(5,212,252) 89,344,979
(27,828,966) -
10,638,208 593,025
703,020,666 793,504,445
(458,558,671) (349,042,880)
(83,402,312) (166,596,125)
(410,790) (603,359)
(4,081,800) (6,025,000)
(546,453,573) (522,267,364)
156,567,093 271,237,081
40,006,480 14,721,688
196,573,573 285,958,769
(72,380,670) (83,764,452)
124,192,903 202,194,317
1.72 2.81
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Profit for the year after taxation 124,192,903 202,194,317
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized appreciation/ (diminution) on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'available-for-sale’ 30 (42,248,274) 69,426,975
Transfer of unrealized loss to profit and loss account on
impairment of available for sale investments 27,828,966 -
Related deferred tax asset / (liability) 17.1 (2,338,670) 3,805,507
(16,757,978) 73,232,482
Unrealized loss / (gain) transferred to profit and loss account on
disposal 6,563,770 (11,118,149)
(10,194,208) 62,114,333
113,998,695 264,308,650

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation 5.3
Amortization 5.3
Financial charges 25
Unrealized appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified

as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' - net 12.1
Capital loss / (gain) on sale of investments - net 22
Loss / (gain) on disposal of fixed assets - net 27

Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Movement in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Accrued mark-up

Receivable from related parties

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend
Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operations

Taxes paid
Financial charges paid
Dividend paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure

Long-term loans and receivables

Long-term deposits

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Proceeds against redemption of investments
Net cash generated from investing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
(Rupees)
196,573,573 285,958,769
17,734,861 12,694,517
8,742,977 4,595,294
410,790 603,359
(10,638,208) (593,025)
5,212,252 (89,344,979)
68,524 (176,633)
21,531,196 (72,221,467)
221,540,006 213,737,302
408,521 (2,571,045)
(12,750,300) (37,970,558)
(127,398) 5,170,428
(26,741,919) 1,677,914

(39,211,096)

(33,693,261)

(72,024) 332,721
(8,796,618) 63,652,651
(8,868,642) 63,985,372

170,025,031 244,029,413
(61,322,046) (100,443,200

(410,790)
(126,000,000)

(603,359

(187,732,836)

(335,046,559

(17,707,805)

)
)
(234,000,000)
)
)

(91,017,146

(52,288,017) (52,832,131)
(3,311,813) (25,646,699)
1,505,510 (1,568,326)
75,000 386,770
72,525,681 147,502,865
18,506,361 67,842,479
798,556 (23,174,667)
18,692,497 41,867,164
19,491,053 18,692,497
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balance as at June 30, 2016

Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity

Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2016 at
Rs 1.75 per share

Interim dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2017 at
Rs 1.5 per share

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit after taxation for the year
ended June 30, 2017

Other comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2017
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity

Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2017 at
Rs 1.75 per share

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit after taxation for the year
ended June 30, 2018

Other comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Issued, Reserves Total
subscribed Capital Revenue
and paid-up Share Deficit arising  Sub-total Unappropriated Unrealized Sub-total
capital premium on profit appreciation on re-
amalgamation measurement of
‘available for sale’
financial assets
(Rupees)

720,000,000 396,000,000 (60,000,000) 336,000,000 235,421,017 257,807,770 493,228,787 1,549,228,787
- - - - (126,000,000) - (126,000,000) (126,000,000)
- - - - (108,000,000) - (108,000,000) (108,000,000)
- - - - (234,000,000) - (234,000,000) (234,000,000)
- - - - 202,194,317 - 202,194,317 202,194,317
- - - - - 62,114,333 62,114,333 62,114,333
- - - - 202,194,317 62,114,333 264,308,650 264,308,650

720,000,000 396,000,000 (60,000,000) 336,000,000 203,615,334 319,922,103 523,537,437 1,579,537,437
- - - - (126,000,000) - (126,000,000) (126,000,000)
- - - - 124,192,903 - 124,192,903 124,192,903
- - - - - (10,194,208) (10,194,208) (10,194,208)
- - - - 124,192,903 (10,194,208) 113,998,695 113,998,695

720,000,000 396,000,000 (60,000,000) 336,000,000 201,808,237 309,727,895 511,536,132 1,567,536,132

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in the name of Arif Habib Investment
Management Limited (AHIML) on August 30, 2000 as an unquoted public limited company under the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. During 2008, AHIML was listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited (now integrated into
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited) by way of offer for sale of shares by a few of its existing shareholders to the general
public. In the same financial year, the name of AHIML was changed from "Arif Habib Investment Management Limited" to
"Arif Habib Investments Limited" (AHIL). On January 19, 2011, a transfer agreement was signed between Arif Habib
Corporation Limited (AHCL) [the then parent of AHIL] and MCB Bank Limited (MCB Bank) [the then parent of MCB Asset
Management Company Limited (MCB AMC)] for transfer of the entire business of MCB AMC to AHIL to achieve synergies
in business and to access a wider distribution network. The scheme of amalgamation ("the Scheme") was approved by
the shareholders of AHIL and MCB AMC in their respective extraordinary general meetings held on May 21, 2011. The
Scheme was also approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) with the effective date of
amalgamation being June 27, 2011 (the effective date). In accordance with the terms contained in the Scheme, the
Company became a subsidiary of MCB Bank Limited from the end of the year ended 30 June 2011 which owns 51.33%
ordinary shares in the Company till date. Pursuant to the merger of MCB AMC with and into AHIL, the name of AHIL has
been changed to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited effective from May 23, 2013.

1.2 The Company is registered as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, as an Asset

Management Company and an Investment Advisor under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003.

1.3 The registered office of the Company is situated at 24th Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e- Millat Expressway, near K.P.T.

Interchange, Karachi, Pakistan.

1.4 The Company has been assigned an Asset Manager rating of AM2++ by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

(PACRA). The rating was determined by PACRA on December 28, 2017. Currently, the Company is managing the following
funds under management:

Note Net assets value as at
2018 2017
(Rupees in million)

Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

Pakistan Income Fund 1,519 1,722
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 10,113 11,629
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund 585 1,351
Pakistan Capital Market Fund 619 675
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 889 628
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund 1,350 1,688
MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 3,213 3,439
MCB DCF Income Fund 4,872 6,189
MCB Cash Management Optimizer 11,993 10,094
MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund 487 900
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 3,633 1,485
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 3,550 2,915
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 2,715 1,981
Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund Plan - | 1,404 1,584
Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund Plan - 1l 794 88
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund 1.6 502 -
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Note Net assets value as at
2018 2017
(Rupees in million)

Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 1,572 1,451

Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund 1.5 774 729
(Formerly Pakistan Islamic Pension Fund)

Discretionary portfolio 32,106 25,061

The Company is also managing investments under discretionary portfolio management agreements, the
details of which are given below:

Number of clients 78 70
Total portfolio at cost (Rs. in millions) 31,180 24,924
Total portfolio at market value (Rs. in millions) 30,681 24,878
Fee earned (Rs. in millions) 32 39

1.5 During the year, the name of Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund (Formerly Pakistan Islamic Pension Fund) was

changed.

1.6 "During the year, the Company launched "Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund" and Pre-IPO was started from April 2,

2018 to April 9, 2018. The scheme is aimed at meeting investors' short to medium term investment requirements. The
scheme seeks to provide investors daily dividend through investment in Shariah Compliant instruments.

1.7 In accordance with the requirements of Rule 9 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)

Rules, 2003, the Company has obtained sufficient insurance coverage from Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited
against any loss that may be incurred as a result of employees' fraud or gross negligence. The insurance Company has
been assigned a credit rating of AA+ by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules),
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations
have been followed.

2.2 Consolidation of mutual funds by the asset management company

The company has made investments in mutual funds established under trust structure. As per SECP notification SRO 56(1)/
2016 dated January 28, 2016, the requirements of consolidation under section 237 of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017) and IFRS 10 is not applicable in case of investment by companies in mutual
funds established under trust structure. Accordingly, the mutual funds are not being consolidated by the Company.
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2.5

2.6

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost conversion, except those financial asset
that have been carried at fair values in accordance with the requirement of international Accounting Standards (IAS) 39.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements and estimates with a significant
risk of material adjustments to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the future years are as follows:

i) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (Note 3.1)

ii) Amortization of intangible assets (Note 3.1)

i) Classification of investments (Note 3.2)

iv) Impairment in available for sale investments (Note 3.2)
v) Income taxes (Note 3.3)

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published
approved accounting standards

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of annual
financial statements of the Company. These changes also include change in respect of recognition criteria of revaluation
surplus on fixed assets, change in nomenclature of primary statements, etc. Further, the disclosure requirements
contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the elimination of duplicative disclosures
with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and incorporation of significant additional disclosures which have been included
in these financial statements.

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective
but not relevant

There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and new interpretations that are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2017. However, these do not have any significant impact
on the Company's financial reporting and therefore have not been detailed in these financial statements.

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following are the new standards, amendments to existing approved accounting standards and new interpretations
that will be effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018, that may have an impact on the financial statements
of the Company:

- Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting
for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification
of share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment
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from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these
arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

- Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ - effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and
only when there change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’]
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other
similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss,
for each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election
is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity,
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or
joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the
date the advance foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was
recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)
clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax.
The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS
15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It
replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC
13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programs’. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes
required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard.

- IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and amendment - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing
guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment
on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39.

Based on the analysis of Company's financial assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018 considering facts and
circumstances that exists at that date, the Company has assessed that as mutual fund units do not qualify as equity
instruments, hence the irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value through OCI is not available,
therefore these need to be classified as fair value through profit and loss. Further as per IFRS 9, any difference between
the previous carrying amount and the carrying amount at the beginning of the annual reporting period that includes
the date of initial application shall be recognised in the opening retained earnings of the annual reporting period that
includes the date of initial application. Therefore the estimated impact that the initial application of IFRS 9 will have
on the Company's financial statements is presented as follows:
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As reported at Estimated Estimated
30 June adjustment adjustment
2018 due to adoption opening
of IFRS 9 balance
1 July 2018
(Rupees)
Unrealized appreciation on re-measurement of
'available for sale' financial assets 309,727,895 (309,727,895) -
Retained earnings 201,808,237 309,727,895 511,536,132
511,536,132 - 511,536,132

- IFRS 16 'Leases' (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing
guidance, including IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating
Leases- Incentive and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS
16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term lease and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The
Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result in
recognition of right to use assets and liabilities on adoption of the standard.

- Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that
finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future
(referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope
of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments
are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a
defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and
net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments is
not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following
approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting
treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business.
A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business.
A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control
of the business.

- 1AS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments
on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the
distributable profits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any
borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to
have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, which have
been consistently applied to all the years presented except for the following:

- the first time application of financial reporting requirements, including disclosure and presentation requirements of the
Companies Act 2017 effective from June 30, 2018, some of the amounts reported for the previous period have been
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reclassified (refer note 41). However, there was no change in the reported amounts of statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income or the amounts presented in the statement of financial position except for presentation.

- new or amendments / interpretations to existing standards and interpretation as stated in note no. 2.6.(b).
FIXED ASSETS
Property and equipment

Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged at the rates specified in note 5.1 using the straight line method on all items of property
and equipment. Depreciation is charged from the month the asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged
in the month of disposal.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted, if
appropriate, to reflect the current best estimate.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets are included in the profit and loss account in the year in which disposal is made.
Capital work-in-progress

All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. Items included in capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

These are transferred to the relevant category of property and equipment as and when these become available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognized at fair values as at the acquisition date.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

3.1.3.1 Intangible asset with finite useful life

After initial recognition, an intangible asset with finite useful life is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is charged at the rates specified in note 5.2 using the straight line
method. Amortization begins from the month the asset is available for use and ceases in the month of disposal. The
amortization period and amortization method are reviewed at each financial year-end and are adjusted, if appropriate,
to reflect the current best estimate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

3.1.3.2 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. After initial recognition, these are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses

(if any).
Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is recognized as of the acquisition date as the excess of consideration
transferred over the acquisition date fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. It represents future
economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in the business combination that are not individually identified and
separately recognized.

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 54 Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.2
3.21

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated from the acquisition date to each of the entity’s cash-
generating units or group of cash-generating units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.

Management rights

Management rights represent the present value of future cash flows relating to the management fee that would be earned
by the Company assuming growth factors, based on the necessary market assumptions, on Assets Under Management
(AUMs) acquired by the Company. This benefit also considers the fact that the economic lifetime of these AUMs is
unlimited. Based on this assumption, the intangible asset has been valued using certain valuation techniques.

At the time of initial recognition, the fair value of management rights had been determined by the management using
the Multiple-period Excess Earnings Method. Under this method the value of a specific intangible asset is estimated
from the residual earnings after fair returns on all other assets (if any) employed have been deducted from the asset’s
after-tax operating earnings.

Impairment

Goodwill and management rights impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of cash generating unit to which goodwill and
management rights is allocated is compared to the recoverable amount, which is higher of value in use and the fair value
less cost to sell. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an expense in the profit and loss account and is not
subsequently reversed.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

3.2.1.1 Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39), "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" at the time
of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The classification depends upon
the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired. The financial assets of the Company are categorized as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices.
Held-to-maturity investments

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Company has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Loans and receivables
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Available-for-sale financial assets

These are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

3.2.1.2 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized at the time the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
These are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and the
transaction costs associated with these financial assets are taken directly to the profit and loss account.

3.2.1.3 Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:
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'Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-for-sale financial assets’

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-for-sale financial assets' are marked to market using
the closing market rates and are carried on the balance sheet at fair values.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of 'financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss'
are taken to the profit and loss account.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of 'available-for-sale financial assets' are taken to other comprehensive
income until these are derecognized. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously shown under other comprehensive
income is transferred to profit and loss account as capital gain / (loss).

'Loans and receivables' and ‘held-to-maturity investments’

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost.

3.2.1.4 Impairment

3.2.2

3.23

3.24

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. When there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as follows:

Assets carried at amortized cost and loans and receivables

Impairment loss in respect of 'assets carried at amortized cost' and 'loans and receivables' is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating) the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment loss in respect of financial assets classified as available-for-sale is recognized based on management's
assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a listed equity
investment below its cost is also considered an objective evidence of impairment. If any evidence for impairment exists,
the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the profit and loss account) that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment
even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. These are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently stated at amortized cost.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities is taken to the profit and loss account.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there

is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.2.5

3.2.6

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured to their fair values with
the resultant gain or loss recognized in the profit and loss account.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the final tax regime. The charge for the current tax also includes
adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred taxation is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences arising
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized. The Company also recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of property
and equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus in accordance with the requirements of International
Accounting Standard 12 (IAS 12), "Income Taxes". Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment loss. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss
account except for the impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the
extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus arising on revaluation of that asset.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

The Company classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

A non-current asset held for sale is carried at the lower of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell.
Impairment losses are recognized though the profit and loss account for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-
current asset to fair value less costs to sell. Subsequent gains in fair value less costs to sell are recognized to the extent
they do not exceed the cumulative impairment losses previously recorded. A non-current asset is not depreciated while
classified as held for sale.

Employee benefits - defined contribution plan

The Company had been contributing to an approved funded provident fund for all its permanent employees until March
2013 after which the provident fund was wound up and contributions ceased.

Subsequently, from April 2013, the Company and its employees have been contributing to the Alhamra Islamic Pension
Fund or Pakistan Pension Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary on employees' discretion. These pension funds were
established under the Voluntary Pension Scheme Rules, 2005 and the Company has been licensed to act as a pension
fund manager of these funds. The Company's contribution along with employees' contribution are paid to the above
mentioned pension funds.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.10.1

3.10.2

3.10.3

3.10.4

3.10.5

3.1

3.12

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are carried at original invoice value less an estimate made for impairment against
receivables which is determined based on management's review of outstanding amounts and previous repayment pattern.
Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off immediately.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. These include cash and cheques in hand, balances
with banks in current and savings accounts and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash (i.e. in three month) and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services whether or not billed to the Company.

Revenue recognition

Management fee / investment advisory fee

- Remuneration for investment advisory and asset management services are recognized on an accrual basis. These
are further disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

- Performance based remuneration for investment advisory services and management of discretionary portfolio are
accrued once the terms of contract are honoured and the Company achieves the performance condition at the end
of the period.

Processing fee and other related income

This is recognized once the services are provided to the unit holders in connection with their investments in collective
investment schemes managed by the Company.

Profit on bank deposits and investments

Profit on bank deposits and on investments are recognized on an accrual basis. Premium or discount on acquisition of
investments is amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining period till maturity using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net

Capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss account on the date at which
the transaction takes place.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any.

Proposed dividends and transfers between reserves
Dividends declared and transfers between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-

adjusting events and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared /
transfers are made.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.16.1

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional and presentational currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the
dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the profit and loss account.

Commitments

Commitments are disclosed in the financial statements at committed amounts. Commitments denominated in foreign
currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses that relates to transactions with any of the other components of the Company.

The Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer have been identified as the chief operating decision-makers, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments. Currently, the
Company is functioning as a single operating segment.

Geographical segment
The operations of the Company are currently based only in Pakistan.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

To cope with the increasing scope of innovation and technology, the Company has redirected its main thrust to digitalization.
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company has successfully undertaken various steps to provide the investors
with an online savings platform including the launch of mobile app of the Company, iSave, which provides the investors
the option to enter into a complete online investment journey. Besides the launch of iSave, the following milestones were
also achieved by the Company:

a) During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company crossed new major milestone in business digitization processes
and signed an agreement with 1LINK, Pakistan's main payment switch that manages the PayPak Card scheme
under the advice of the State Bank of Pakistan. Under this agreement, the Company inter alia other activities will
also be issuing its own proprietary debit cards. This is the first of its kind agreement in Pakistan and the Company
is not only the first PayPak Affiliate Member but also the first asset management company to enter such an agreement;

b) During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company launched a one of its kind Shariah compliant collective investment
scheme, Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund. The entire income generated by the Fund during a day is distributed among
the unit-holders on a daily basis through an automated system and requires minimum human intervention; and

c) To increase the Company’s physical reach across Pakistan, the Company, during the year, has further expanded
the network of its branches and new branches in the cities of Multan, Quetta and Sialkot were opened whereas the
branches in the cities of Rawalpindi and Abbottabad were relocated to maintain the footprints of the Company in
these cities.
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FIXED ASSETS

Tangible
Property and equipment
Capital work in progress

Intangible assets
Computer software
Goodwill
Management rights

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
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Note

5.1
5.4

5.2
5.2
5.2

2018 2017
(Rupees)

92,902,785 87,070,895
1,900,586 1,731,725
94,803,371 88,802,620
31,800,262 12,133,786
82,126,933 82,126,933
192,000,000 192,000,000
305,927,195 286,260,719
400,730,566 375,063,339
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5.1

Property and equipment

As at 1 July 2017

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at 30 June 2018

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciation rates (% per annum)

As at 1 July 2016

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2017
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Write offs
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closing net book value

As at 30 June 2017

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Depreciation rates (% per annum)

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

2018
Computers Office Furniture and Leasehold Vehicles Total
equipment fixtures improvements
(Rupees)

28,094,752 22,523,576 15,025,031 57,748,037 7,662,267 131,053,663
(18,535,777) (9,633,950) (2,716,360) (5,434,414) (7,662,267) (43,982,768)

9,558,975 12,889,626 12,308,671 52,313,623 - 87,070,895

9,558,975 12,889,626 12,308,671 52,313,623 - 87,070,895

5,934,633 5,687,731 1,709,864 8,583,475 1,794,000 23,709,703
(437,870) (178,634) - - - (616,504)

395,676 77,876 - - - 473,552
(42,194) (100,758) - - (142,952)
(4,827,699) (5,006,106) (1,498,199) (6,328,107) (74,750) (17,734,861)

10,623,715 13,470,493 12,520,336 54,568,991 1,719,250 92,902,785

33,591,515 28,032,673 16,734,895 66,331,512 9,456,267 154,146,862
(22,967,800) (14,562,180) (4,214,559) (11,762,521) (7,737,017) (61,244,077)

10,623,715 13,470,493 12,520,336 54,568,991 1,719,250 92,902,785

25% 20% - 50% 10% 10% - 20% 25%
2017
Computers Office Furniture and Leasehold Vehicles  Total
equipment fixtures improvements
(Rupees)

31,702,035 12,704,062 9,776,101 30,259,863 7,662,267 92,104,328
(25,188,074) (7,454,615) (1,743,281) (1,058,431) (7,662,267) (43,106,668)
6,513,961 5,249,447 8,032,820 29,201,432 - 48,997,660
6,513,961 5,249,447 8,032,820 29,201,432 - 48,997,660
6,693,098 11,433,860 5,362,759 27,488,174 - 50,977,891
(9,786,325) (1,477,051) (113,829) - - (11,377,205)
9,702,862 1,350,384 113,822 - - 11,167,068

(83,463) (126,667) (7) - - (210,137)

(514,056) (137,295) - - - (651,351)
514,055 137,294 - - - 651,349

(1 Q)] - - - (2)

(3,564,620) (3,667,013) (1,086,901) (4,375,983) - (12,694,517)
9,558,975 12,889,626 12,308,671 52,313,623 - 87,070,895
28,094,752 22,523,576 15,025,031 57,748,037 7,662,267 131,053,663
(18,535,777) (9,633,950) (2,716,360) (5,434,414) (7,662,267) (43,982,768)
9,558,975 12,889,626 12,308,671 52,313,623 - 87,070,895

25% 20% - 50% 10% 10% - 20% 25%
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There were no disposal of fixed assets during the year, whose aggregate book value exceeds Rs. 500,000.

5.1.1
5.1.2

million (2017: Rs. 38.150 million).
5.2 Intangible assets

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

As at 1 July 2017

Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Amortization for the year
Closing net book value

As at 30 June 2018

Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Amortization rates (% per annum)

As at 1 July 2016

Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended 30 June 2017
Opening net book value
Additions during the year
Amortization for the year
Closing net book value

As at 30 June 2017

Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Amortization rate (% per annum)

Included in the cost of property and equipment are fully depreciated items which are still in use aggregating to Rs. 46.801

2018
Computer Goodwill Management Total
software rights
(Rupees)
40,020,325 82,126,933 192,000,000 314,147,258
(27,886,539) - - (27,886,539)
12,133,786 82,126,933 192,000,000 286,260,719
12,133,786 82,126,933 192,000,000 286,260,719
28,409,453 - - 28,409,453
(8,742,977) - - (8,742,977)
31,800,262 82,126,933 192,000,000 305,927,195
68,429,778 82,126,933 192,000,000 342,556,711
(36,629,516) - - (36,629,516)
31,800,262 82,126,933 192,000,000 305,927,195
25%
2017
Computer Goodwill Management Total
software rights
(Rupees)
32,027,019 82,126,933 192,000,000 306,153,952
(23,291,245) - - (23,291,245)
8,735,774 82,126,933 192,000,000 282,862,707
8,735,774 82,126,933 192,000,000 282,862,707
7,993,306 - - 7,993,306
(4,595,294) - - (4,595,294)
12,133,786 82,126,933 192,000,000 286,260,719
40,020,325 82,126,933 192,000,000 314,147,258
(27,886,539) - - (27,886,539)
12,133,786 82,126,933 192,000,000 286,260,719
25%
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5.21

5.2.2

523

5.4

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3: 'Business combinations', an acquiree shall measure goodwill acquired
in a business combination, subsequent to initial recognition at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill
acquired in a business combination and intangible assets having indefinite useful life shall not be amortized, instead,
they shall be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired, in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 36: 'Impairment of Assets'. In addition,
goodwill acquired in a business combination and intangible assets having indefinite useful lives shall be allocated to
each of the acquirer's cash-generating unit (CGU) or a group of cash-generating units if they can be attributed directly,
or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis.

The recoverable amount for the purpose of assessing impairment of goodwill and management rights allocated to CGU
is based on value in use. The calculations performed by the Company's valuer, are based on a five year plan approved
by management for its business unit. Value in use is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the continuing use of CGU, using a discount rate of 16.97% (2017: 15.50%) that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. The management believes this to be a suitable
time scale over which to review and consider annual performance before applying a fixed terminal value multiple of 4%
(2017: 4%) to the final year cash flow of the detailed projections. Based on this exercise at June 30, 2018, recoverable
amount of CGU exceeded the carrying amount.
Key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts
The growth rates used to estimate future performance of the business unit are based on a market participant's perspective
and also take into account past performance. The management believes that any reasonable possible changes to the
key assumptions on which calculation of recoverable amount is based, would not cause the carrying amount to exceed
the recoverable Iculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
- Growth rate of assets under management

Growth forecast is based on management's best estimates and also takes into account past

trends.
- Cost to income ratio

Cost to income ratio for asset management business is based on management's best estimate and
also takes into account past trends.

- Discount rate
The discount rate for the CGU is the cost of equity.
- Terminal growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the budgeted period

It is based on the growth rate of cash flows during the explicit forecast period.

5.3 Depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows: Note 2018 2017
Depreciation Amortization Depreciation Amortization
------------ (Rupees) (Rupees) --------------—
Charged to profit and loss 23 17,328,216 8,542,510 11,380,845 4,119,756
Charged to Collective Investment
Schemes under management 406,645 200,467 1,313,672 475,538
17,734,861 8,742,977 12,694,517 4,595,294
Capital work in progress 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Opening balance 1,731,725 7,870,791
Additions during the year 6,894,729 8,542,161
Transferred to property and equipment (6,725,868) (14,681,227)
Closing balance 1,900,586 1,731,725
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6.1

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Investments in units of pension schemes - related parties
Available-for-sale investments 6.1 520,628,175 547,193,018
Available-for-sale
Asat |Purchase/| As at As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017
Name of the Investee July 01, [Redemptio|June 30, Market Unrealized Unrealized
Cost e Cost Market value -
fund 2017 n 2018 value appreciation appreciation
-------- (Number of units) -------- (Rupees)
Pakistan Pension Fund 805,305 - 805,305 102,112,651 255,569,563 153,456,912 102,112,651 263,737,823 161,625,172
Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund 876,129 - 876,129 108,787,629 265,058,612 156,270,983 108,787,629 283,455,195 174,667,566

210,900,280 520,628,175 309,727,895 210,900,280 547,193,018 336,292,738

LONG-TERM LOANS AND PREPAYMENTS Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Loans
Secured - Considered good
- to executives 7.1 6,768,513 4,172,381
- to other employees 9,311 12,311
Less: current portion of loans (1,449,092) (1,022,135)
5,328,732 3,162,557
Prepayments
Prepaid commission against Bachat units 64,666,681 43,042,963
Less: current portion (39,764,763) (19,286,683)
24,901,918 23,756,280
30,230,650 26,918,837

7.1 These represent interest-free loans given to executives as per the terms of employment for the purchase of motor

vehicles. These are recovered through monthly deductions from salaries over the term of the loans and are secured
against pension fund balances of the employees. Based on month end balances, the maximum aggregate balance of
loans to executives outstanding at any time during the year was Rs. 6.91 million (2017: Rs. 4.17 million).

Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives is as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees)
Opening balance 4,172,381 1,725,268
Disbursements during the year 4,139,600 3,857,600
Repayments made during the year (1,543,468) (1,410,487)
Closing balance 6,768,513 4,172,381
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8.1

8.2

8.3

RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES Note

Unsecured - considered good

Pakistan Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund

MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund

Pakistan Capital Market Fund

Pakistan Pension Fund

Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund 1.5
Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund

Pakistan Sarmaya Mehfooz Fund

MCB Pakistan Asset allocation Fund

MCB Cash Management Optimizer

MCB DCF Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund - Plan |
Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund - Plan |l
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund 1.6
MCB Financial Planning Fund (Proposed fund)

8.1
Less: Provision against reimbursable expenses 27.1
Advisory fee on account of discretionary portfolio management
Adamijee Life Assurance Company Limited
Other Receivable
Adamijee Life Assurance Company Limited
Arif Habib Limited

8.2

2018 2017
(Rupees)
10,866,481 11,922,840
90,829,265 96,611,863
33,674,865 34,591,868
7,636,924 7,814,098
8,981,026 8,931,470
4,457,700 4,667,981
12,243,335 13,088,687
22,778,551 23,380,827
4,267,360 4,677,401
46,366,084 44,131,385
64,520,591 59,879,615
134,131,922 135,263,570
5,058,058 6,416,963
16,349,173 14,464,430
21,112,138 12,495,214
14,312,957 12,765,302
190,781 5,755,523
105,810 73,801
197,897 -
1,000,000 -
499,080,918 496,932,838
- (21,737,559)
499,080,918 475,195,279
9,023,008 8,731,065
2,500,000 -
506,193 441,856
511,110,119 484,368,200

The above amounts represent receivable on account of management fee, federal excise duty, sales tax on management
fee, sales load, conversion cost and other expenses paid on behalf of the related parties. This includes Federal Excise
Duty (FED) amounting to Rs. 399.62 million (2017: Rs. 399.62 million) which has been accrued by the Company and
is receivable from the funds under its management. The matter is further explained in note 18.2 to the financial statements.

Above balances are mark-up free and unsecured. These are neither past due nor impaired except for the FED

balances mentioned in note 8.1.

The related parties from whom the maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year

(month-end balance) are as under:

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 65

Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

10

Note

Pakistan Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund

MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund

Pakistan Capital Market Fund

Pakistan Pension Fund

Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund
Pakistan Sarmaya Mehfooz Fund

MCB Pakistan Asset allocation Fund

MCB Cash Management Optimizer

MCB DCF Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund - Plan |
Alhamra Islamic Active Asset Allocation Fund - Plan Il
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund

Other proposed fund

Adamijee Life Assurance Company Limited
Arif Habib Limited

LOANS AND ADVANCES Note

Secured - Considered good
Current portion of loans to employees 7

Advances - Considered good
Advance rent

Advances to employees

Advances to suppliers and contractors

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note
DEPOSITS

Prepayments

Registration fee

Insurance

Current portion of prepaid commission against Bachat units 7
Others
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2018 2017
(Rupees)
12,001,943 11,922,840
90,829,265 96,611,863
33,961,939 34,591,868
___ 7636924 ___ 7,814,098
8,981,026 8,931,470
4,830,275 4,667,981
12,670,559 13,088,687
23,357,620 23,380,827
4,267,360 4,677,401
46,582,181 44,131,385
64,520,591 59,879,615
135,694,868 135,263,570
6,631,659 6,416,963
16,349,173 14,464,430
21,112,138 12,495,214
14,312,957 12,765,302
190,781 5,755,523
151,273 73,801
198,944 -
1,000,000 -
11,523,008 8,731,065
506,193 441,856
2018 2017
(Rupees)
1,449,092 1,022,135
4,309,271 3,916,888
21,199 51,626
1,292,708 2,490,142
5,623,178 6,458,656
7,072,270 7,480,791
2018 2017
(Rupees)
1,697,676 -
568,509 1,659,480
5,144,565 3,946,739
39,764,763 19,286,683
1,675,609 2,818,896
47,153,446 27,711,798
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Note 2018 2017
. (Rupees)
Other receivables
Advisory fee receivable on account of discretionary portfolio management 31,824,743 34,209,517
Others 376,950 436,581
32,201,693 34,646,098
Provision against advisory fee 10.1 (5,944,619) -
75,108,196 62,357,896
10.1 MOVEMENT IN PROVISION
Opening balance - -
Provision made during the year 5,944,619 -
Reversal of provision - -
Closing balance 5,944,619 -
11 ACCRUED MARK-UP
This represents mark-up receivable on bank deposits.
12 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss - related parties 12.1 424,303,397 384,081,782
Available-for-sale investments - related parties 12.2 194,268,111 285,219,388
618,571,508 669,301,170
121 At fair value through profit or loss
As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017
N fthe I As at July PZ:S:L?::/ Redemptions / |As at June u lized U ized
ame oFtu:dnvestee 01, 2017 | i vested sale 30,2018 || carrying value | Market value ap:::i;?on Carrying value| Market value apg:iilazt‘igon
wememmmnnnaas (NUMber of units) -------eseeeen (Rupees)
MCB Cash Management
Optimizer 3,821,037 5,127,728 (4,943,413) 4,005,352 413,665,189 424,303,397 10,638,208 383,488,757 384,081,782 593,025
MCB Pakistan Stock
Market Fund 557,576 (557,576)
Alhamra Daily Dividend
Fund 1,069,968 (1,069,968)
413,665,189 424,303,397 10,638,208 383,488,757 384,081,782 593,025
12.2 Available-for-sale ir
As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017
As at July :::::gaf;: Redemptions As at June i ;
Name of':t::;nvestee 01,2017 year 30,2018 Carrying value | Market value (;ji::ie::'tzi::) Carrying value Market value (tijil::ie:dltfoe:)
------------- (Number of units) (Rupees)
MCB Pakistan Stock
Market Fund 2,782,582 242,615 (976,209) 2,048,988 222,097,077 194,268,111 (27,828,966) 303,928,693 285,219,388 (18,709,305)
222,097,077 194,268,111 (27,828,966) 303,928,693 285,219,388 (18,709,305)
MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 67 Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

13 ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISIONS Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Advance tax 84,277,463 105,024,475
Income tax refundable 47,113,604 40,889,737
131,391,067 145,914,212
Provision for taxation 28 (68,895,140) (78,183,861)
62,495,927 67,730,351

Income tax refundable includes assessed refunds for the tax years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2017.

14
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Balances with bank in
14,391,629
- saving accounts 14.1 15,262,022
- current accounts 14.2 4,212,024 4,275,868
19,474,046 18,667,497
Cash in hand 17,007 25,000
19,491,053 18,692,497

14.1  These represent deposits made with conventional banks under mark-up arrangements with mark-up rate ranging between
2.80% to 6.00% (2017: 3.16% to 5.5%) per annum and include balances in accounts maintained with related parties;
MCB Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 10.689 million (2017: Rs. 7.109 million) which carries mark-up at the rate of 5.5%
(2017: 3.75%) per annum and MCB Islamic Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1.057 million (2017: Rs. 2.745 million) which
carries mark-up at the rate of 2.9% (2017: 3.75%) per annum.

14.2 These represent balances in accounts maintained with conventional banks and include amounts placed with MCB Bank
Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 4.025 million (2017: Rs. 4.097 million).

15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2018 2017 Note 2018 2017
(Number of shares) (Rupees)

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

5,000,000 5,000,000 - Fully paid in cash 50,000,000 50,000,000
31,000,000 31,000,000 - Allotted as bonus shares 310,000,000 310,000,000
36,000,000 36,000,000 - Issued for consideration other than cash 16.1 360,000,000 360,000,000
72,000,000 72,000,000 720,000,000 720,000,000

15.1 Shares held by the related parties of the Company 2018 2017

(Number of shares)
Particulars of the shareholders

MCB Bank Limited 36,956,768 36,956,768
Arif Habib Corporation Limited 21,664,167 21,664,167
Adamijee Insurance Company Limited 5,462,000 -

Directors, spouses and their minor children 29,826 29,826
Others 1,200 1,200
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15.2  There is no shareholder agreement for voting rights, board election, rights of first refusal and block voting.

Note 2018 2017
16 DEFICIT ARISING ON AMALGAMATION (Rupees)
Deficit arising on amalgamation 16.1 60,000,000 60,000,000
16.1  In accordance with the scheme of amalgamation of MCB AMC and AHIL, the entire undertaking of MCB AMC including
all properties, assets, liabilities, receivables, payables and all other rights and obligations were transferred into and
vested in the Company as on the effective date. As part of the Scheme, the Company issued and allotted 36 million
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, as fully paid shares, to the registered ordinary shareholders of MCB AMC in the ratio
of 1.2 ordinary shares of the Company for each share of Rs. 10 of MCB AMC as consideration.
Deficit arising on amalgamation represents difference in share capital of AHIL and MCB AMC at the time of merger.
17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - NET Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Deferred tax credits / (debits) arising in respect of :
- Property and equipment 3,438,902 1,191,351
- Intangible assets 55,700,838 50,071,343
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss 1,595,731 88,962
- Provision against advisory fee (1,723,940) -
- Available-for-sale investments (4,174,345) (2,338,670)
17.1 54,837,186 49,012,986
17.1 Movement of deferred tax (asset) / liability
Balance as Recognized Recognizedin Balance as Recognized Recognizedin Balance as at
at 30 June in profit other at 30 June in profit other 30 June 2018
2016 and loss comprehensive 2017 and loss  comprehensive
account income account income
2017 2018
(Rupees)
Taxable temporary differences
- Property and equipment 1,236,999 (45,648) - 1,191,351 2,247,551 - 3,438,902
- Intangible assets 44,206,773 5,864,570 - 50,071,343 5,629,495 - 55,700,838
- Investments at fair value through
profit or loss 327,293 (238,331) - 88,962 1,506,769 - 1,595,731
45,771,065 5,580,591 - 51,351,656 9,383,815 - 60,735,471
Deductible temporary differences
- Provision against advisory fee - - - - (1,723,940) - (1,723,940)
- Available-for-sale investments 1,466,837 - (3,805,507) (2,338,670) (4,174,345) 2,338,670 (4,174,345)
47,237,902 5,580,591 (3,805,507) 49,012,986 3,485,530 2,338,670 54,837,186
17.2  Deferred tax balance has been recognized at the rates at which these are expected to be settled or realized.
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Accrued expenses 81,637,452 95,288,194
Workers' welfare fund 18.1 25,569,050 21,487,250
Withholding tax payable 1,767,302 1,049,723
Indirect taxes and duties payable 18.2 408,073,171 415,647,852
Payable to facilitators / distributors 105,103,974 97,474,548
622,150,949 630,947,567

18.1 Workers' welfare fund

Through Finance Act, 2008, the Federal Government introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)
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Ordinance, 1971 whereby the definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged
at various levels and conflicting judgments were rendered by the Lahore High Court, Sindh High Court and Peshawar
High Court. Appeals against these orders were filed in the Supreme Court.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 has held that the amendments made in the
law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of Workers' Welfare Fund were not lawful as this is not in the
nature of tax and therefore could not have been introduced through the money bill. The Federal Board of Revenue has
filed review petitions against the above judgment which are currently pending with the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

In light of the judgment passed by the Supreme Court, the Management believes that the Company is not liable to pay
any amounts under the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971, accordingly an amount of Rs. 14.442 million has been
reversed on January 12, 2017. Further, as a consequence of passage of 18th Amendment to the Constitution, levy for
Workers' Welfare was also introduced by the Government of Sindh (SWWF) which was effective from July 01, 2014.
The Company believes that contribution to Workers' Welfare Fund under the Sindh Workers' Welfare Act, 2014 is not
applicable on the Company as it is not a Financial Institution as required under SWWF Act, 2014.

However, out of abundant caution, the management has decided to provide for SWWF amounting to Rs. 25.86 million
with effect from July 01, 2014. Moreover, the management has decided not to reverse WWF amounting to Rs. 5.10
million which have been already paid to Tax Authority until the said amount is refunded back.

Federal excise duty payable on remuneration of the management company

As per the requirements of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration
of the Management Company has been applied, effective June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the view that
since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED may result in double taxation,
which does not appear to be the spirit of law.

The matter has been collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly with other Asset Management Companies
together with their respective Collective Investment Schemes through their trustees, through a Constitutional Petition
filed in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 4, 2013 challenging the levy of FED. The Sindh High Court
in its decision dated July 16, 2016 maintained the previous order passed against other constitutional petition whereby
levy of FED has been declared to be ‘Ultra Vires’ the Constitution. The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed
an appeal against the said order in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan considering which the previous balance
of FED amounting to Rs. 399.62 million has not been reversed.

Through Finance Act, 2016, FED on services rendered by non-banking financial institutions including asset management
companies, which are already subject to provincial sales tax, has been withdrawn. Therefore, in the current year, provision
for FED has not been recorded.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Punjab Revenue Authority issued a show cause notice no. PRA/AM.70/14/18 dated June 20, 2014 requiring the
Company to pay Sales Tax under the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012 with effect from May 22, 2013 on
management fee earned in Punjab. The matter has been collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly with
other Asset Management Companies together with their respective Collective Investment Schemes through their trustees,
by filing a petition on July 8, 2014 in the Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the above notice. The SHC has ordered
suspension of the show cause notice till the next hearing of appeal in its Order dated July 10, 2014. The management
is expecting no outflow of economic resources as the payment relating to sales tax is already made to Sindh Revenue
Board and in case the decision is made against the Company the same is required to be settled between the two
authorities.

On January 30, 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue [ACIR] passed an order under section 122(5A) of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amending the assessment for tax year 2011 after making certain additions / disallowances
in the profit and loss account and created a demand of Rs. 25.567 million. The disallowances mainly pertained to
apportionment of expenses, management / processing fee and related income sharing, amortization of management
rights / goodwill created on merger of the MCB Asset Management Company (MCB AMC) into the Company etc. The
Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue — Appeals [CIR-A] against the impugned order and
notice of demand issued there against. The CIR-A annulled the Order of the ACIR by deleting demand on all the issues
raised therein. An appeal against the order of CIR-A has been filed before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
"[ATIR] by the Commissioner Inland Revenue. The company, in consultation with its tax advisor, is" confident of a
favourable outcome.

The case of the Company was selected for audit by the Commissioner Inland Revenue, Zone lll, Large
Taxpayers Unit, Karachi for tax year 2014 vide letter dated November 9, 2016. The audit proceedings
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were conducted by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue [DCIR] and a Show-Cause Notice [SCN]
dated February 10, 2017 was issued thereafter. Based on a recent judgment of a superior court, the SCN
was challenged on legal grounds. However, the DCIR did not agree with the legal objections raised and
passed an order dated March 24, 2017 under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after
making certain additions / disallowances in the profit and loss account and created a demand of Rs. 93.398 million The
disallowances mainly pertained to apportionment of expenses, management / processing fee and related income sharing,
amortization of management rights / goodwill created on merger of the MCB AMC into the Company etc. An appeal
before the CIR-A was filed by the Company which has been adjudged in favor of the Company in respect of major
disallowances made in the Order of the DCIR. In respect of the matters confirmed by the CIR-A, the Company has filed
an appeal before the ATIR. For issues deleted / set-aside by the CIR-A, an appeal has also been filed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue before the ATIR. The company, in consultation with its tax advisor, is confident of a favourable outcome
in respect of the said appeals.

On March 29, 2017, the ACIR passed an order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
amending the assessment for tax year 2012 after making certain additions / disallowances in the profit
and loss account and created a demand of Rs. 82.841 million. The disallowances mainly pertained to apportionment
of expenses, management / processing fee and related income sharing, amortization of management rights / goodwill
created on merger of the MCB AMC into the Company, disallowance of brought forward losses / refunds of prior periods
etc. The Company filed an appeal before the CIR-A against the impugned order and notice of demand issued there
against. The CIR-A annulled the Order of the ACIR by deleting demand on all the issues raised therein. An appeal against
the order of the CIR-A has been filed before the ATIR by the Commissioner Inland Revenue. The company, in consultation
with its tax advisor, is confident of a favourable outcome in respect of the said appeals.

On April 29, 2017, a notice under section 122(9) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by the ACIR to conduct
the amendment of assessment proceedings for tax year 2011 of the pre-merger entity MCB AMC. On July 3, 2017 an
order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, was passed to conclude the said proceedings. A
demand of Rs. 4.85 million has been raised by the ACIR by making disallowances mainly pertaining to apportionment
of expenses, management / processing fee and related income sharing and disallowance of brought forward losses.
The Company has filed an appeal before the CIR-A against the impugned order and notice of demand issued there
against. During the year ended June 30, 2018, order of the CIR-A was received by the Company whereby the demand
on major issues was deleted. In respect of the matters confirmed by the CIR-A, the Company has filed an appeal before
the ATIR. For issues deleted / set-aside by the CIR-A, an appeal has also been filed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue
before the ATIR. The company, in consultation with its tax advisor, is confident of a favourable outcome in respect of
the said appeals.

On February 29, 2016, the DCIR passed an order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 relating to
the tax year 2010 of MCB AMC making certain additions / disallowances in the return. The Company filed an appeal
before the CIR-A against the said order. The CIR-A vide order dated December 11, 2017 deleted the disallowances
made by the DCIR. Subsequently, the ACIR relating to tax year 2010 of MCB AMC treated tax deduction under section
153(1)(b) on service as minimum tax creating demandof Rs 0.980 million on May 4, 2016. The Company filed an appeal
before CIR-A. The CIR-A vide order dated January 22, 2018 has confirmed the treatment of ACIR. The Company has
filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR-A. The company, in consultation with its tax advisor, is confident
of afavourable outcome in respect of the said appeals.

On November 24, 2017, the Company received two orders pertaining to tax years 2015 and 2016 passed by the ACIR
and DCIR raising demands of Rs. 119.350 million and Rs. 142.008 million respectively. The disallowances mainly
pertained to apportionment of expenses, management / processing fee and related income sharing, amortization of
management rights / goodwill created on merger of the MCB AMC into the Company, treatment of provision for FED
as income of the Company etc. The Company filed separate appeals before the CIR-A against the impugned orders
and notices of demand issued there against. During the year ended June 30, 2018, orders of CIR-A were received
against the said appeals. For issues decided against the Company, appeals before the ATIR have been filed by the
Company. The company, in consultation with its tax advisor, is confident of a favourable outcome in respect of the said
appeals.

On June 5, 2017, the Company received an order passed by the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board AC-
(SRB) wherein a demand of Rs.16.95 million has been raised on (alleged) short levy / improper treatment of input tax
in the sales tax returns for the tax periods from July 2011 to June 2015. An appeal against the aforesaid order has been
filed before the concerned Commissioner Appeals - Sindh Revenue Board which is pending adjudication. The management
is expecting a favourable outcome of the aforesaid appeal.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Company had obtained a short-term running finance facility under mark up
arrangement with MCB Bank Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 500 million. The facility carries mark-up at one
month KIBOR+0.5% (2017: KIBOR+0.5%) per annum. The facility is secured against pledge of government securities
i.e. PIBs and T-Bills only and will be expired on May 31, 2019. However, the facility is unutilized as at June 30, 2018.
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MANAGEMENT FEE / INVESTMENT Note 2018 2017
ADVISORY FEE (Rupees)
From Collective Investment Schemes - related parties
MCB Cash Management Optimizer 92,168,157 50,209,679
MCB DCF Income Fund 92,974,053 109,812,502
MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 72,913,131 54,325,904
MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund 7,558,987 12,397,586
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund 7,113,329 41,630,370
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 237,048,344 238,963,247
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 4,948,020 9,641,485
Pakistan Capital Market Fund 14,242,527 15,111,316
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund 21,304,989 38,067,443
Pakistan Income Fund 23,416,244 18,268,678
Pakistan Sarmaya Mehfooz Fund - 3,532,121
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 19,711,998 7,369,318
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 72,800,197 42,697,197
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 56,364,912 26,207,071
Alhamra Active Asset Allocation Fund Plan | 938,601 4,871,711
Alhamra Active Asset Allocation Fund Plan Il 477,814 33,536
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund 1.6 377,613 -
724,358,916 673,139,164
Pension schemes - related parties
Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund 1.5 12,167,160 10,644,922
Pakistan Pension Fund 24,647,536 22,434,266
36,814,696 33,079,188
20.1 761,173,612 706,218,352
Investment advisory fee from discretionary portfolio management 20.2 31,679,863 43,796,785
792,853,475 750,015,137

Less: Indirect taxes and duties on management fee / investment advisory fee

Sindh sales tax
Federal excise duty

(91,213,232)

(86,284,927)

701,640,243

663,730,210

Management fee from open-end Collective Investment Schemes is calculated by charging the specified rates to the net
asset value / income of such schemes as at the close of business of each calendar day. In accordance with Regulation
61 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the fee so charged does not exceed 2% of the average annual net assets in case
of Equity, Balanced, Asset Allocation Schemes and Capital Protected (dynamic asset allocation-direct exposure), 1.5%
of average annual net assets in case of Income, Aggregate income, Index, Fund of Funds and Commodity Schemes
(cash settled) and 1% of average annual net assets in case of Money Market, Commodity Schemes (deliverables) and
Capital protected schemes, that has been verified by the trustee. In accordance with Rule 11 of the Voluntary Pension
System Rules, 2005 the management fee from the pension funds is charged at the rate of 1.5% of the average of values
of the net assets of the pension fund calculated during the year for determining the prices of the units of the sub-funds.

The Company is managing investments under discretionary portfolio management agreements. Investment advisory
fee from the discretionary portfolios is calculated on a daily / monthly basis by charging specified rates to the net asset
value of the portfolios as stated in the respective agreements with the clients. The details of this portfolio are given in
note 1.4 of these financial statements.
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21 PROFIT ON BANK DEPOSITS

This represents income earned under interest / mark-up arrangements with conventional and islamic banks.

22 CAPITAL GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS - NET 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Loss on sale of government securities - (1,695,982)
(Loss) / gain on redemption of units of collective investment schemes (5,212,252) 91,040,961
(5,212,252) 89,344,979
23 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 23.2 278,284,829 214,898,995
Legal and professional charges 23.3 9,739,235 16,631,086
Travelling and conveyance charges 12,081,276 7,635,734
Rent, utilities, repairs and maintenance 83,872,525 61,062,947
Office supplies 1,144,874 887,666
Auditors' remuneration 23.4 2,395,000 2,275,000
Directors' meeting fee 4,700,000 3,500,000
Insurance 1,559,296 1,479,018
Depreciation 5.3 17,328,216 11,380,845
Amortization 5.3 8,542,510 4,119,756
Stamp duty and taxes 438,050 122,825
Registrar fee 558,811 766,192
Printing and stationery 3,742,303 2,582,994
Telephone expenses 7,252,445 5,832,516
Entertainment expenses 3,813,695 4,041,156
Books, periodicals and subscription 17,844,883 10,663,050
Provision against advisory fee 10.1 5,260,723 -

Miscellaneous expenses - 1,163,100
458,558,671 349,042,880

23.1 The SECP vide S.R.O No. 1160 (1) / 2015 dated November 25, 2015 introduced amendments in the NBFC Regulations
2008. As a result of these amendments, the management company may charge fees and expenses pertaining to registrar
services, accounting, operations on CISs upto a maximum of 0.1% of average annual net assets of the scheme.
Accordingly, expenses amounting to Rs. 48.96 million (2017: Rs. 44.109 million) have been charged by the Company
to the respective CISs under its management.

23.2 This amount includes contributions on behalf of the employees to pension fund (note 3.6) amounting to Rs. 8.2 million
(2017: Rs 5.238 million).

23.3 This includes Rs. 0.3 million paid to PSX as a penalty in respect of non-compliance of clause 5.7.2 (d) of Pakistan Stock
Exchange regulations.
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23.4  Auditors' remuneration 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Audit fee 1,575,000 1,500,000
Half yearly review fee 290,000 275,000
Fee for the review of compliance with the best practices of the Code of
Corporate Governance 80,000 75,000
Fee for other services 375,000 350,000
Out of pocket expenses 75,000 75,000
2,395,000 2,275,000

24 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Commission expense 24.1 & 24.2 38,541,760 119,722,208
Marketing and other expenses 44,860,552 46,873,917
83,402,312 166,596,125

241 This includes an amount of Rs. 53.067 million (2017: Rs. 48.586 million) pertaining to MCB Bank Limited (a related
party).

242 The SECP vide Circular 40/2016 dated December 30, 2016, prescribed certain conditions on Asset Management
Companies (AMCs) for charging of selling and marketing expenses to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds
initially for three years (from January 01, 2017 till December 31, 2019) for opening of new branches in cities, except
Karachi, Lahore, Islamabad and Rawalpindi. Minimum three branches required to be opened in June 30, 2018. Maximum
cap of selling and marketing expenses shall be 0.4% per annum of net assets of fund or actual expenses, whichever
is lower. The expenses amounting to Rs. 78.909 million have been charged by the Company to aforesaid funds under
its management.

25 FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges 410,790 603,359

26 WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

Workers' welfare fund 4,081,800 6,025,000
27 OTHER INCOME Note 2018 2017
(Rupees)

Income from assets other than financial assets

(Loss) / gain on disposal of fixed assets - net (68,524) 176,633

Reversal of provision against selling and marketing 27.1 21,737,559 -

Sale of software right to a related party 5,000,000 -

Others 27.2 13,337,445 14,545,055
40,006,480 14,721,688

271 This amount represents reversal of provision of selling and marketing expenses which were provided last year as
payments were held by CDC due to an objection raised by them. During the year, CDC released the payment, as a result
the amount provided is reversed.

27.2 This includes reversal of liabilities of Rs. 11.8 million.

Note 2018 2017
28 TAXATION (Rupees)
Current 65,586,803 77,096,551
Prior 3,308,337 1,087,310
68,895,140 78,183,861
Deferred 17.1 3,485,530 5,580,591
28.1 72,380,670 83,764,452
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28.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The tax provision is based on tax payable by the Company under presumptive tax regime and minimum
taxation under section 153(1)(b) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Therefore, there is no relationship
between accounting profit and tax expense.

28.2 The income tax returns upto the tax year 2017 have been filed under the self assessment scheme and are
deemed to be finalized under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Deemed assessment for
certain tax years have been amended by the department on account of various issues as explained in note
19 to the financial statements.

28.3 The Finance Act, 2015 introduced a new tax under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as amended through
Finance Act 2018 and requires every public company other than a scheduled bank or a modaraba, that derives profit
for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20 percent of its after tax profits within six months of the end of the tax year
through cash.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 14, 2018, have recommended sufficient cash
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 for the consideration and approval of the shareholders of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly,
no provision for tax on undistributed profit has been recognised in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2018.

28.4 Sufficient provision for tax has been made in these financial statements taking into account the profit or
loss for the year and various admissible and inadmissible allowances and deduction under the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Position of provision and assessment including returns filed and deemed assessed for
last three years are as follows:

2017 2016 2015
(Rupees)
Tax provision including effects of prior years 80,404,888 112,597,711 110,029,592
Tax assessed / return filed 80,404,887 112,597,710 110,029,592

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
291 Basic

Earnings per share has been computed by dividing profit after taxation for the year by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year:

2018 2017
(Rupees)

Profit for the year after taxation 124,192,903 202,194,317

(Number of shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 72,000,000 72,000,000
(Rupees)
Basic earnings per share 1.72 2.81
29.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue
as at June 30, 2018 and 2017 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.
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30 NET UNREALISED APPRECIATION/DIMINUTION ON RE-MEASUREMENT Note 2018 2017
OF INVESTMENTS CLASSIFIED AS 'AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE' (Rupees)
Long-term Investments:
Market value of investments 520,628,175 547,193,018
Less: Carrying value of investments (210,900,280) (210,900,280)
6.1 309,727,895 336,292,738
Less: Net unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments
at the beginning of the year (336,292,738) (245,122,471)
(26,564,843) 91,170,267
Short-term Investments:
Market value of investments 194,268,111 285,219,388
Less: Carrying value of investments (222,097,077) (303,928,693)
12.2 (27,828,966) (18,709,305)
Less: Net unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments
at the beginning of the year 18,709,305 (14,152,136)
Add: Amount realized on redemption (6,563,770) 11,118,149
(15,683,431) (21,743,292)
(42,248,274) 69,426,975
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 14 19,491,053 18,692,497
REMUNERATION TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the remuneration including all benefits to the Chief Executive
Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:
2018 2017
. Chief Chief Executive
Particulars Executive Directors Executives Officer Directors Executives
Officer
(Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 7,854,539 - 46,445,480 6,545,455 - 53,483,376
Bonus - - 31,300,000 4,320,000 - 22,224,404
Retirement benefits 662,086 - 3,204,300 546,792 - 4,612,969
Rent and house maintenance 3,534,539 - 18,605,859 2,945,455 - 19,329,824
Utilities 785,459 - 4,134,620 654,545 - 4,295,516
Medical 785,463 - 4,134,632 654,545 - 4,295,516
Meeting fee - 4,700,000 - - 3,500,000 -
Others 4,318,178 - 12,195,111 4,223,889 - 12,049,188
17,940,264 4,700,000 120,020,002 19,890,681 3,500,000 120,290,793
Number of persons 1 7 18 1 7 40
Executive means an employee of a listed company other than the chief executive and directors whose basic salary
exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year. The chief executive officer and executives are also provided with medical
facilities in accordance with their entittements. The company is also providing a personal secretary, servant, health
insurance and company mantained car for personal use of Vice Chairman.
OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company functions as a single operating segment. Income derived from the management fee of open-end collective
investment schemes and pension funds and that derived from the management of discretionary portfolios account for
96% and 4% (2017: 94.16% and 5.84%) respectively of the total income earned during the year.
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Assets

Non-current assets

Long-term investments
Long-term loans and receivables
Long-term deposits

Current assets

Receivable from related parties

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Accrued mark-up

Short-term investments

Cash and bank balances

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend
Trade and other payables

Assets

Non-current assets

Long-term investments
Long-term loans and receivables
Long-term deposits

Current assets

Receivable from related parties

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Accrued mark-up

Short-term investments

Cash and bank balances

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend
Trade and other payables

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

As at June 30, 2018

. At fair value
LoaPs and Available-for- through profit Total
receivables sale
or loss
(Rupees)

- 520,628,175 - 520,628,175
5,328,732 - - 5,328,732
3,089,228 - - 3,089,228
8,417,960 520,628,175 - 529,046,135
511,110,119 - - 511,110,119
1,449,092 - - 1,449,092
32,201,693 - - 32,201,693
200,207 - - 200,207

- 194,268,111 424,303,397 618,571,508

19,491,053 - - 19,491,053
564,452,164 194,268,111 424,303,397 1,183,023,672
572,870,124 714,896,286 424,303,397 1,712,069,807
As at June 30, 2018
. At fair value
At amortized through profit Total
cost
or loss
(Rupees)
4,203,632 - 4,203,632
622,150,949 - 622,150,949
626,354,581 626,354,581
As at June 30, 2017
Loans and Available-for- Atfair valqe
receivables sale through profit or Total
loss
(Rupees)

- 547,193,018 - 547,193,018
3,162,557 - - 3,162,557
4,594,738 - - 4,594,738
7,757,295 547,193,018 - 554,950,313
484,368,200 - - 484,368,200
1,022,135 - - 27,928,661
34,646,098 - - 34,950,796
72,809 - - 72,809

- 285,219,388 384,081,782 669,301,170

18,692,497 - - 18,692,497
538,801,739 285,219,388 384,081,782 1,235,314,133
546,559,034 832,412,406 384,081,782 1,790,264,446
As at June 30, 2017
At amortized At fair valqe
through profit or Total
cost
loss
(Rupees)
4,275,656 - 4,275,656
630,947,567 - 630,947,567
635,223,223 635,223,223
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35
35.1

35.2

35.21

35.2.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to certain financial risks which the management monitors and manages through
internal risk management on an ongoing basis. In connection with the Company's financing of operations, the finance
function ensures adequate and flexible liquidity. This is guaranteed by placing deposits in cash and extremely liquid
negotiable instruments and/or using binding credit facilities.

Financial risks pertain to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these
risks by managing financial assets and liabilities to minimize the risk exposures. Compliance with policies and exposure
limits are reviewed by the internal audit function on a continuous basis.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, etc.). The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns
to shareholders.

The Company’s policy is to manage market risk through diversification and selection of securities within specified limits
set by the Board of Directors.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, yield / interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Presently, the Company is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are carried out in
Pak Rupees.

Yield / interest rate risk

Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Presently, the Company does not hold any variable rate financial instrument.
b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments comprise balances with banks in savings accounts. The income from these financial assets are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

The composition of the Company's investment portfolio and KIBOR rates are expected to change over time. Therefore,
the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2018 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assets
due to future movements in interest rates.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlement date.

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 78 Annual Report 2018




2018

b

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

22029251 - - - - 220'292'S1 deb Apaisuss
ajes Jsaiajul dAREINWND
220'292'SL - - - - 220'292'SL (g+e) deb
Auanisuss sjes jsalsyul [e)o)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (q) deb jeays aouejeq-}yo
219'1£6'G80°} 059'629'020'L  (v0z'z18'62)  (019'99v'SSL)  ZiZ'0zy  LyL'08T 1LL'662'SS2L  220'292'SL - - - - 220'792'SL « (e) deb jaays asuejeq-uo
085'¥5€'929 085'¥5€'929 €58'sy8'LeY 82.'305°881 - - - - - - - - -

8v6'051'229 8V6°051'229 122'Tr9'sey 82.'805'881 - - - - - - - - - sa|qeAed Jayio pue apei|
2€9'e02'y 2€9'€02'y 2€9'€0Z'y - - - - - - - - - - puUBpIAIp pawejun
qel| [efoueuly

252'2622LLL 0€2'0€0°L69'L 619820801 LlL'ero'ee zieozy 11082 111'662°662'} 220°792'S1L - - - - 220'292'S1L
€50°167°61 1€0'622'y - - - - 10622 220°292'S1L - - - - 220°792'S1L %S’S - %91°€ $8dueleq yueq pue ysey
202°002 102°00Z - - - - 102002 - - - - - - dn-yuew paniooy
€69°102°2¢ €69°102°2¢ - £€69°102°2¢ - - - - - - - - - S3|qeAI903. Jayjo pue sysodsq
6LL'OLL'LLS 6LL°0LL'LLS 000°029°66€ - - - 6LL06Y LLL - - - - - - salled pajeja) wol 9|qenIsosy
822'680°€ 822'680°€ 822'680°€ - - - - - - - - - - sysodap wue}-buo
692'000°L 692°000°L 1zy'ele's vey'ovs [4%A 147 11082 LL0'0VL - - - - - - SO|qBAI9DSI PUB SSOUBADE ‘SUBOT
€89'661'6€1°L €89'661'6€1°L - - - - €89'661'6€1°} - - - - - - SjuswsaAu|
sjosse [eldueuly
j93ys 8duejeq uQ

(seadny)
syjuow syjuow
syjuous xis syjuow xis
Jeak auo 291y} Jeak Jeak auo a1y}
lejo} 1eak auo o} syjuow yjuow auo lejo} 0} syjuow Yjuow auo dn-pew
-qng Jaye fjunjely 0} stpuoul xis 931y} 190 9} thuow 0} dn Ajunjely -qng ouo Joye | 0} syjuow Xis 991U} JaA0 93 tuow 0} dn Ajunjep Sa19)ul JO sJie[noiue,
lejoL q g J13n0 Runjep e aU0 J9A0 g funew | sono Aunjep foume 3U0 J19A0 g /3s3133ul Jenoned
ey funen Junjey fune ajel 3oy

Buneaq dn ylew [ }sa1v)ui-uoN

Buneaq dn-yJew / 3saiau|

8102 ‘0€ aunf je sy

SMOJ|0} SE SI ¥SH )kl Jsaiajul 0} ainsodxs s,Auedwo) ay |

)
=
=)
N
i
[*]
o
Q
x
[
S
c
=
<

imited

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments L




2018

H

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

"SWa}l }88Ys 8oUe(eg-Uo JO Sjunowe Jau ay) sjussaldal deb jeays aoueleq-uo ay] ,

629'L6EYL - 629'L6EYL - - - deb Ajaisuas
ajel JsaIv)ul SARRINWNY
629'16E'VL - 629'L6E'VL - - - (q+e) deb

uas ajel Jsalajul [eJOL
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (q) deb jeays aouejeq-4o
192'8L1°2LL') 2eL'L8L° 6L 126'L€8'06% 968'€9€'709 ¥€5'65¢ 95€'0LL GZY'651'29 629°16E'VL - 629°L6EVL - - - « (e) deb joays aoueleq-uo

€22'€22'G€9 €22'€22'5€9 860V Ly Sov'Z18'E6L - - - - - - - - -
19G'1¥6'0€9 196'/¥6'0€9 col'sel'ley G91'218'€6L - - - - - - - - - se|qeAed Jayjo pue spei|
969'G.2'Y 959'G/2'Y 969'G/2'Y - - - - - - - - - - pUBPIAIP pawiepun
qey| [eroueuly

¥86°L0%'208'L G5€0L0'e6L L 6.,9'8¥2'2€6 19€'9/1'86. ¥€6'65C 9G€'0L) GZ¥'651'29 629'L6E VL - 629'L6E VL - - -
16%'269'8L 898'00€' - 898'00€'Y - - - 629'16E'V) - 629'16E'7} - - - %0G°G - %91'¢ $8dueleq yueq pue ysen
608°CL 608°CL - - - - 608°2L - - - - - - dn-sjsew paniooy
860'9Y9'vE 860'0v9'vE - 860'9Y9'v€ - - - - - - - - - S3|qeAI903. Jayjo pue sysodsq
281'7€1'90G 281'v€1'90G 122'8V9'vSE £25'v8Y'68 - - 8E%'100'29 - - - - - - solped pejejal Wwolj s|qeAlsday
9EL'VBS'Y 9EL'V6S'Y 9EL'V6S'Y - - - - - - - - - - spsodap wis}-6uo
¥.%'191'9¢ ¥.¥'192'9C ¥0.'218'Ge 20L'evy ¥€6'65¢ 9G€'0L) 8/1'G8 - - - - - - SO|qBAI9DSI PUB SSOUBADE ‘SUBOT
881 'v6¥'91Z'L 88L'v61'91Z'L 810'€6L'LYS 0£1°10€'699 - - - - - - - - - SjusWw}SaAU|
sjesse [eloueuly
sjuawnLsul [eloueuly J9aYs adueeq uQ

(seadny)
syjuow syjuow
syjuow xis syjuow xis
Jeak QaIy} 1eak J1eak auo Qaly}
|E10) 1eak suo 0} syyuow yuow suo [e10} 0} syuow yiuow suo dn
-gns Jaye Aunyepy ouo o} sypuow 991U} JONO O} yuowt 0} dn Ajuniepy -gqns 8uo Jeye O} syjuoul xs 991y} JOAO O} yuoul 0} dn Ajunjepy
=1L q g son0 Apme | e 8U0 JOA0 - Apmew | sono Aumew | e U0 JoA0 i HEW /3saisiul Sienojed
JUnje Aunen JUnje funen JO ajel aABYg

Buueaq dn suew / }saisjui-uoN

Bulieaq dn-yew / }saisju|

2102 ‘0€ dunr je sy

)
=
=)
N
€
o
o
Q
x
[
S
c
=
<

imited

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments L
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35.2.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial

instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is exposed to price risk because of investments held by the Company in units of open-end collective investment schemes and
pension funds managed by the Company itself. The investments are marked to market based on the net assets value which are declared for
each fund on a daily basis. Senior management of the Company reviews these investments on a regular basis. Furthermore, the Investment

Committee of the Company also reviews and approves all significant investment decisions.

In case of 1% increase / decrease in the net asset values of the investments subject to price risk, the profit for the year after taxation of the
Company would be higher / lower by Rs. 3.840 million (2017: Rs. 3.888 million), other comprehensive income for the year would be higher /
lower by Rs 7.148 million (2017: Rs 8.324 million) and total comprehensive income for the year would be higher / lower by Rs. 10.989 million

(2017: Rs. 12.165 million).

35.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The entire portfolio
of financial assets of the Company (except for cash in hand and investment in government securities) is subject to credit risk. However, the
management believes that the Company's credit risk is minimal as major portion of financial assets comprise investments in or receivables from

its Funds under Management which are financially sound.

The Company's financial assets are neither past due nor impaired as at the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements at June 30, 2018 is the carrying amount of the financial assets as set

out below:
2018 2017

Financial assets (Rupees)

Investments 1,139,199,683 1,012,220,865
Long term deposits 3,089,228 4,594,738
Long-term loans and advances 5,328,732 26,918,837
Receivable from related parties 511,110,119 484,368,200
Loans and advances 2,762,999 4,184,692
Other receivables 32,201,693 34,646,098
Accrued mark-up 200,207 72,809
Cash and bank balances 19,474,046 18,667,497

1,713,366,708

1,585,673,736

Ratings of Funds from which amounts are receivable or where the Company has invested in are as follows:

As at June 30, 2018

As at June 30, 2017

Rating agency

Fund Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
(Performance ranking)

MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 3 - star 3 - star 4 - star 3 - star PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 3 - star 4 - star - 4 - star PACRA
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star 3 - star PACRA
Pakistan Capital Market Fund 5 - star 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star PACRA
MCB Pakistan Frequent Payout Fund - 4 - star - 2 - star PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star 4 - star PACRA

As at June 30, 2018

As at June 30, 2017

Rating agency

----------------------- (Stability rating)----------------------.
MCB Cash Management Optimizer AA+(f) AA (f) PACRA
MCB DCF Income Fund A+(f) A+ PACRA
Alhamra Islamic Income Fund AA-(f) AA - (f) PACRA
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund AA-(f) AA - (f) PACRA
Pakistan Cash Management Fund AA+(f) AAA (f) PACRA
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund A+(f) A+ (f) PACRA
Pakistan Income Fund A+(f) A+(f) PACRA
Pakistan Sarmaya Mehfooz Fund N/A CP2 + PACRA

Latest available ratings of banks with which deposits are kept are as follows:
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As at June 30, 2018 As at June 30, 2017 Rating agency

BANK Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
(Rating)

MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA AAA A1+ PACRA
Summit Bank Limited A-1 A- A- A-1 JCR-VIS
Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ AA+ A1+ PACRA
NIB Bank Limited N/A N/A AA- A1+ PACRA
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA AA A1+ PACRA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A A A1 PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ AA A1+ PACRA
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous. The management closely monitors
the Company's liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios and rational
investment decisions after taking into consideration the current availability of liquid resources. As at June 30, 2018, the
Company's cash and bank balances amounted to Rs 19.491 million (2017: Rs 18.692 million).

The management believes that the Company is not exposed to any significant level of liquidity risk because its liabilities
are supported by other operating revenues generated by the Company and balances maintained with banks and are
further supported by investments of the Company in its own funds under management which are readily convertible into
cash.

The maturity profile of the Company's liability based on contractual maturities is disclosed in note 35.2.2.(b).
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and fair value
estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair values of investments in units of open-end collective investment schemes and pension schemes are based on
the net assets value announced by the Company at each reporting date.

The estimated fair value of all other assets and liabilities is considered not to be significantly different from carrying
values as the items are either short-term in nature or are periodically repriced.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities ;

Level 2
inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

Level 3
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited 82 Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

On-balance sheet

As at June 30, 2018

financial instruments Carrying amount Fair value
Investments Loans and Other financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
receivables liabilities
Financial assets (Rupees)
measured at fair value
Long-term investments 520,628,175 - - 520,628,175 520,628,175 - - 520,628,175
Short-term investments 618,571,508 - - 618,571,508 618,571,508 - - 618,571,508
1,139,199,683 - - 1,139,199,683
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Long-term loans and prepayments - 5,328,732 - 5,328,732
Long-term deposits - 3,089,228 - 3,089,228
Receivable from related parties - 511,110,119 - 511,110,119
Loans and advances - 1,449,092 - 1,449,092
Other receivables - 32,201,693 - 32,201,693
Accrued mark-up - 200,207 - 200,207
Cash and bank balances - 19,491,053 - 19,491,053
- 572,870,124 - 572,870,124
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Unclaimed dividend - - 4,203,632 4,203,632
Trade and other payables - - 622,150,949 622,150,949
- - 626,354,581 626,354,581
On-balance sheet As at June 30, 2017
financial instruments Carrying amount Fair value
Investments Loans and Other financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
receivables liabilities
Financial assets (Rupees)
measured at fair value
Long-term investments 547,193,018 - - 547,193,018 547,193,018 - - 547,193,018
Short-term investments 669,301,170 - - 669,301,170 669,301,170 - - 669,301,170
1,216,494,188 - - 1,216,494,188
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Long-term loans and prepayments - 3,162,557 - 3,162,557
Long-term deposits - 4,594,738 - 4,594,738
Receivable from related parties - 484,368,200 - 484,368,200
Loans and advances - 1,022,135 - 1,022,135
Other receivables - 34,646,098 - 34,646,098
Accrued mark-up - 72,809 - 72,809
Cash and bank balances - 18,692,497 - 18,692,497
- 546,559,034 - 546,559,034
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Unclaimed dividend - - 4,275,656 4,275,656
Trade and other payables - - 630,947,567 630,947,567
- - 635,223,223 635,223,223

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

- to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders

and benefits to other stakeholders, and

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services that commensurate with the level of risk.

The Company is subject to externally imposed minimum equity requirement laid down under the NBFC Rules, 2003 and
the NBFC Regulation, 2008 for providing asset management services and investment advisory services and is required
to maintain Rs. 230 million equity. The Company's paid-up capital has remained well above the minimum required threshold

limit during the year and as at June 30, 2018.

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. Currently,

the Company is financing its operations through equity and working capital.
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38 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

MCB Bank Limited (MCB) holds 51.33% ordinary shares of the Company as at the year end. Therefore, all subsidiaries
and associated undertakings of MCB are related parties of the Company. Other related parties comprise of Arif Habib
Corporation Limited with a holding percentage of 30%, companies having common directorship, collective investment
schemes and voluntary pension schemes managed by the Company, directors, key management personnel and their close
family members and retirement benefit plan. The transactions with related parties are in the normal course of business

and are carried out at contracted rates and terms. Details of such transaction are as follows:

38.1 Transactions with related parties during the year

Name of the related party Relationship and Nature of transaction 2018 2017
percentage of shareholding (Rupees)
MCB BANK LIMITED Parent company with Commission and other expenses 53,066,755 69,249,917
51.33% Holding Profit on bank deposits 1,228,121 676,396
Bank charges 410,790 590,916
Reimbursement of expenses 12,966,250 15,000,000
Branch sharing expenses 4,339,916 5,031,674
Dividend paid 64,674,344 120,109,496
Reversal of liability 5,693,750 -
MCB ISLAMIC BANK LIMITED Subsidiary of Profit on bank deposits 27,916 113,311
Parent Company Bank charges - 12,443
NISHAT REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT Group Company Rent expense 3,398,747 2,614,420
COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED of Parent Company Rent deposit - 784,326
NISHAT HOTELS AND PROPERTIES Group Company Rent expense 2,480,000 800,000
LIMITED of Parent Company
ADAMJEE LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY Group Company Investment advisory fee 14,480,626 8,731,065
LIMITED of Parent Company Amount paid against life assurance 8,067,444 6,649,847
Sale of software 5,000,000 -
ADAMJEE INSURANCE COMPANY Group Company Amount paid against insurance 1,367,545 1,580,415
LIMITED of Parent Company Amount received against insurance claim 333,297 119,220
Dividend paid 8,954,750 1,518,720
MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED Subsidiary of Reimbursement of expenses - 8,720
Parent Company Trustee fee - 2,340,000
ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED Associate with 30.09% Dividend paid 37,912,292 70,408,543
Holding Company
ARIF HABIB LIMITED Subsidiary of Sharing of expenses 712,541 441,856
Associated Company
MCB CASH MANAGEMENT OPTIMIZER Funds under Management fee 81,564,741 44,433,344
management Reimbursement of expenses 12,767,852 7,049,087
Investment in units 529,644,149 1,722,668,015

Redemption of units 508,500,000 1,359,985,488
MCB DCF INCOME FUND Funds under Management fee 82,277,923 97,179,205
management Share of sales load 171,876 117,248
Back end load 23,620 -
Reimbursement of expenses 5,485,195 6,841,653
Investment in units - 439,588,644
Redemption of units - 440,229,055
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC INCOME FUND Funds under Management fee 17,444,246 6,521,520
management Share of sales load 639,078 100,268
Reimbursement of expenses 2,774,206 1,039,573
Sharia fee paid on behalf of the fund 900,000 900,000
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Name of the related party

MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION
FUND

MCB PAKISTAN FREQUENT PAYOUT
FUND

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

MCB PAKISTAN SOVEREIGN FUND

MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND

PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND

PAKISTAN CASH MANAGEMENT FUND
PAKISTAN INCOME ENHANCEMENT

FUND

PAKISTAN INCOME FUND

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET
ALLOCATION FUND

PAKISTAN SARMAYA MAHFOOZ
FUND (Matured)

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND

Relationship and
percentage of shareholding

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

Nature of transaction

Management fee

Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses
Selling and marketing
Back-end load

Redemption of units

Management fee

Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses
Selling and marketing

Management fee

Share of sales load

Reimbursement of expenses
Selling and marketing

Sharia fee paid on behalf of the fund

Management fee

Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses
Investments in units
Redemption of units

Management fee

Share of sales load
Back-end load
Reimbursement of expenses
Selling and marketing
Dividend income
Investments in units
Redemption of units

Management fee

Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses
Selling and marketing

Management fee
Reimbursement of expenses

Management fee

Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses
Investments in units
Redemption of units

Management fee
Share of sales load
Reimbursement of expenses

Management fee

Share of sales load

Back end load

Reimbursement of expenses

Selling and marketing

Shariah fee paid on behalf of the fund

Management fee
Reimbursement of expenses

Management fee

Share of sales load
Contribution to fund on behalf of the employees

85

2018
(Rupees)

64,524,895
192,503
3,226,245
12,904,131
9,122,365

6,689,369

664,206
1,053,116

64,424,953
408,992
3,221,248
12,884,773
900,000

6,294,981
38,497
985,132

209,777,296
2,011,613
20,699
10,488,865
41,955,460

74,467,287
142,647,360

12,604,006
61,495
630,200
138,284

4,378,779
706,919

18,853,973
175,370
1,837,648

20,722,340
173,212
1,498,424

49,880,453
1,259,721
6,493,005
2,494,023
9,976,091

900,000

10,767,398
253,059
11,846,477

2017

48,076,021
250,953
2,403,358
2,799,803
6,939
85,500,324

10,971,315
21,513
1,050,529
1,045,581

37,785,130
1,030,050
1,889,284
2,961,255

900,000

36,841,035
69,715
5,264,888
124,986,422
440,638,231

211,471,900
3,370,419

10,573,595
13,336,300
25,574,849
433,776,048
340,000,000

13,372,846
137,175
668,643

8,532,288
1,410,890

33,688,003
72,410
2,434,868
132,192,627
132,773,938

16,166,972
55,217
1,225,052

23,192,098
780,295
64,589
1,181,217
1,592,601
900,000

3,125,771
312,577

9,420,285
474,819
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Name of the related party

PAKISTAN PENSION FUND

AL-HAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ASSET
ALLOCATION FUND PLAN-I

AL-HAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ASSET
ALLOCATION FUND PLAN-II

ALHAMRA DAILY DIVIDEND FUND

38.2 Amount outstanding at year end

Name of the related party

MCB BANK LIMITED

MCB ISLAMIC BANK LIMITED
ADAMJEE LIFE ASSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED

NISHAT REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY (PVT.) LTD.

MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

ARIF HABIB LIMITED

MCB DCF INCOME FUND

MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION
FUND

MCB CASH MANAGEMENT OPTIMIZER

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND

PAKISTAN INCOME FUND

Relationship and
percentage of shareholding

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Relationship and
percentage of shareholding

Parent company with
51.33% Holding

Subsidiary of
Parent Company

Group Company
of Parent Company

Group Company
of Parent Company

Subsidiary of
Parent Company

Subsidiary of
Associated Company

Funds under

management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

Funds under

management

Funds under
management

Funds under
management

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

Nature of transaction 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Management fee 21,811,979 19,853,333
Share of sales load 245,659 250,585
Contribution to fund on behalf of the employees 4,554,273
Management fee 830,620 4,311,249
Sales load - 492,090
Payment made on behalf of fund - formation cost - 5,000,000
Payment made on behalf of fund - account opening - 30,000
Reimbursement of expenses 1,457,948 760,467
Management fee 422,844 29,678
Payment made on behalf of fund - account opening - 30,000
Sales load 180,916 -
Reimbursement of expenses 727,009 3,379
Management fee 334,171 -
Dividend income 869,942 -
Investments in units 106,996,789 -
Redemption of units 106,996,789 -
Nature of transaction 2018 2017
(Rupees)
Bank balance 14,713,692 11,206,085
Other payable 14,379,790 22,627,175
Commission payable 3,331,143 48,574,718
Mark-up receivable 166,561 34,212
Bank balance 1,056,985 2,745,552
Mark-up receivable 1,041 24,198
Advisory fee receivable 9,023,008 8,731,065
Receivable against sale of intangible 2,500,000 -
Rent Deposit 784,326 784,326
Payable against trustee fee - 226,000
Sharing of expenses 506,193 441,856
Remuneration receivable 105,431,420 106,720,514
Sales load receivable 28,324,680 28,018,233
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 375,822 524,823
Remuneration receivable 24,871,165 24,836,759
Sales load receivable 16,757,790 16,230,551
Back-end load 1,293,734 6,939
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 258,560 257,038
Receivable against selling & marketing expenses 3,184,835 2,799,803
Remuneration receivable 63,337,767 59,215,590
Closing balance of investment in units 424,303,397 384,081,729
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 1,182,824 664,025
Remuneration receivable 10,659,129 9,525,302
Sales load receivable 3,114,407 3,053,115
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 464,421 111,885
Receivable against shariah fee 75,000 75,000
Remuneration receivable 74,514,641 76,724,748
Sales load receivable 4,489,367 5,572,296
Other receivable 5,026 6,052
Closing balance of investment in units 194,268,111 285,219,441
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 873,464 971,257
Receivable against selling & marketing expenses 10,946,767 13,336,300
Remuneration receivable 10,298,358 11,542,973
Sales load receivable 445,802 245,297
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 122,321 134,570
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Name of the related party Relationship and Nature of transaction 2018 2017
percentage of shareholding (Rupees)

MCB PAKISTAN SOVEREIGN FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 29,452,072 30,248,261
management Sales load receivable 4,169,841 4,169,840
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 52,952 173,767
PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 7,050,273 7,149,396
management Sales load receivable 396,220 608,197
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 52,147 56,505

Receivable against selling & marketing expenses 138,284 -
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 12,221,892 10,763,732
management Sales load receivable 143,179 439,701
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 289,060 224,540
Receivable against selling & marketing expenses 3,620,042 2,961,255
Receivable against Shariah Fee 75,000 75,000
PAKISTAN PENSION FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 8,140,003 7,991,039
management Sales load receivable 841,023 940,963
Closing balance of investment in units 255,569,563 263,737,823
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET Funds under Remuneration receivable 12,443,393 8,710,001
ALLOCATION FUND management Sales load receivable 4,163,891 1,986,320
Back end load receivable 744,899 7,231
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 289,026 123,832
Receivable against selling & marketing expenses 3,395,929 1,592,601
Receivable against shariah fee 75,000 75,000
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 4,099,420 4,048,307
management Sales load receivable 358,280 619,674
Closing balance of investment in units 265,058,612 283,455,195
PAKISTAN SARMAYA MAHFOOZ FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 1,960,082 2,335,803
(Matured) management Sales load receivable 2,307,278 2,307,278
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses - 34,320
PAKISTAN CASH MANAGEMENT FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 12,174,814 12,748,418
management Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 68,521 121,768
Other receivable - 222,399
Other payable - 181,000
PAKISTAN INCOME ENHANCEMENT Funds under Remuneration receivable 17,911,242 18,453,728
FUND management Sales load receivable 4,748,432 4,757,245
Other receivable 3,529 7,660
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 115,348 162,167
MCB PAKISTAN FREQUENT PAYOUT Funds under Remuneration receivable 1,393,526 1,671,792
FUND management Sales load receivable 3,624,619 3,624,619
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 39,913 74,789
Receivable against selling & marketing expenses - 1,045,581
AL-HAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ASSET Funds under Remuneration receivable 74,282 591,876
ALLOCATION FUND PLAN-I management Formation Cost - 5,000,000
Other receivable - 30,000
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 116,499 133,648
AL-HAMRA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ASSET Funds under Remuneration receivable 38,774 33,536
ALLOCATION FUND PLAN-II management Sales load receivable - 6,886
Other receivable - 30,000
Receivable against reimbursement of expenses 67,036 3,379

ALHAMRA DAILY DIVIDEND FUND Funds under Remuneration receivable 157,897 -

management Payable against bank charges 19,212 -

Other receivable 40,000 -

Key management personnel of the Company comprises of the Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executives. Their
remuneration are disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2018 2017
(Number)

Number of employees at June 30

- Permanent 269 201

- Contractual 115 108

Average number of employees during the year
- Permanent 235 170
- Contractual 112 103

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 14, 2018 has declared final cash dividend of Rs. 1.75 per share
(2017: Rs. 1.75 per share declared on August 04, 2017). These financial statements do not include the effect of this
appropriation which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2019.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 has introduced certain presentation and classification requirements
for the elements of financial statements. Accordingly, the corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified,
wherever considered necessary, to comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2017. Following major reclassifications
have been made during the year other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements.

Description Reclassified from Reclassified to 2017
(Rupees)
Unclaimed dividend Trade and other payables Unclaimed dividend 4,275,656

(presented on face of statement of
financial position)

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 14, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
GENERAL

Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated.

e > v

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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FORM OF PROXY
18" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
On October 26, 2018.

The Company Secretary

MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

24" Floor, Centrepoint, Off-Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway,
KPT Interchange,

Karachi-74900

l/We of
in the district of
being a member of MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments

Limited, hereby appoint
of as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, October 26, 2018
and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2018.

Signature on five Rupees

Revenue Stamp

(The signature should agree with the specimen registered with the Company)

1. WITNESS: 2, WITNESS:
Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Address: Address:

CNIC/ Passport No. CNIC/ Passport No.

Shareholder Folio No.
CDC Participant ID No & Sub Account No.

Note:
1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 24™
Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, KPT Interchange, Karachi-74900, Pakistan not less than
48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of the proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. CDC share holders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.

4. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
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MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

Head Office: 24th Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Near K.PT. Interchange, Karachi-74900

UAN: (+92-21) 11-11-62224 (11-11-MCB-AH), 111-468-378 l(12I.1 INVEST}, Fax: (+92-21) 35316080, 35316081,
URL: www.mcbah.com, Email: info@mcbah.com



